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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
LAZIMPAT, KATHMANDU

Notice about 27** Annual General Meeting
of Oriental Hotels Limited

As per the decision of the 3rd Board Meeting dated 2081 Bhadra 27 held in the financial year 2081/82,
27" annual general meeting of Oriental Hotels Limited is scheduled to be held on following date, place
and time to discuss and decide on the following agendas. All the shareholders are hereby notified and
requested to present himself or present through valid representative.

Date : 6™ October 2024, Sunday (2081/06/20)
Time : 11:.00 AM

Place :  Nepal Administrative Staff College, Jawalakhel, Lalitpur.

Agendas to be discussed

A. General Agenda
1. To discuss and approve Board of Director's 27th Annual Report for the Financial Year 2080/81
(2023/24)

2. To Discuss and approve Audit Report and Audited Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and other related notes
and schedules of Financial Statements for 2080/81 (2023/24).

3. As proposed by the Board of Directors, out of the accumulated profit of financial year 2080/81, to
approve to provide cash dividend of 0.26316 % of existing paid up capital Rs. 1,12,80,90,438.00,
which comes to Rs. 29,68,659.05, for tax purpose.

4.  To appoint statutory auditor for the financial year 2081/82 and fix auditors’ remuneration as per the
recommendation of Audit Committee. (Current auditor Mr. Yagya Raj Bhatta, P.Y.C. & Associates,
is eligible to be reappointed as statutory auditor.)

B. Special Agenda

1. Asproposed by the Board of Directors, to approve to distribute 5% Bonus Shares to its shareholders
and accordingly increase the paid up share capital.

2.  Toamend and discard Sec 8(ka), (kha) and (nga) of Memorandum of Association and Rule 13(chha)
of Article of Association.

C. Miscellaneious
0. 7.8
.............. A

By Order
Company Secretary

Note : For the convenience of the shareholders, the meeting hall will remain open from 10 AM.
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Information about Annual General Meeting

All the shareholders who are attending 27
annual general meeting are requested to
carry valid identity card (Citizenship Card
or any other identity card) along with share
certificate or verified copy of DMAT Account
to the annual general meeting.

Shareholder willing to nominate proxy shall
register proxy form at the NIMB Ace Capital
Limited, Lazimpat at least 48 hours before
the meeting commencement time. If the
shareholder attends the meeting himself
even after nominating proxy, the proxy
becomes invalid automatically.

The registered caretaker person can attend
AGM, cast vote and nominate proxy on
behalf of minor child shareholders or

mentally retarded shareholders.

In the case of share purchased jointly, the
person whose name appears first in the share
register book or unanimously nominated
one person only can attend the meeting and
cast the vote.

Due to security reasons, shareholders are
requested not to bring bags and languages.
The security personnel may check the
baggage and other belongings during the
meeting, shareholders are requested to
cooperate with the security check.

10.

For the convenience of the shareholders,
attendance register shall remain open from
10:00 AM onwards.

Share register shall remain close from
2081/06/07 to 2081/06/20. Share traded
in Nepal Stock Exchange till 2081/06/06
and validly applied for the updates in share
register of the company till this date, shall
be treated as shareholder for this annual
general meeting.

Notice of AGM and the financial statement
will be sent to the email address mentioned
in shareholders register book and will
also be uploaded in the website of share
registrar NIMB Ace Capital Limited www.
nimbacecapital.com/radisson before AGM
date.

Brief annual financial statement will be
sent to the shareholders in the email, if it is
mentioned in share register book.

For further information about the annual
general meeting, it is requested to contact
Oriental Hotels Limited, Lazimpat (Company
Secretary's office).
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AWARD AND RECOGNITION

GOLD AWARD
Category: Service Scctar

Joint Managing Director Ms. Bidhata Shrestha and the team
receiving ICAN BPA award 2023.
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VISION

To be the most RESPECTED hotel brand in
the world, in which we are:

Trusted by our travellers — for our consistent quality,
reliable service and genuine hospitality.

Respected by owners and operators — for the strength
of our brand and our ability to build value in hotels and
to drive revenues.

Sought out by employees' because of our reputation for
innovation, for opportunities within the company and
our culture, this creates a positive work environment.
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OUR
MISSION

To provide genuine hospitality to our guests at every point of
contact

and

To build relationships valuable with our guest, owners,
employees and partners by developing the operating :
Great Places, For Great People, To provide
Great Hospitality and deliver

great results.
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES




Develop our Talent

+ Attract and retain high caliber team
members

4+ Invest in team member competencies
and talents

4+ Drive a performance and Talent
Management culture

4+ Recognize performance and ensure
competitive compensation

Drive the Business

4 Drive Revenue

+ Drive Cost Optimization
4+ Drive Profitable Growth

2080-2081 1l

Delight our Guests

4+ Enhance and deliver the brands'
promises

4+ Create and Deliver "Bright Spots”

4+ Rekindle the innovation culture

+ Rejuvenate Food and Drinks

Deliver Results

+ Deliver compelling results for our
hotel owners
<+ Maximize shareholder value
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CODE OF
BUSINESS ETHICS

Radisson Hotel is committed to
maintaining a high standard of
business ethics, honesty and integrity
in line with  Responsible Business
program encompassing social, ethical
and environmental responsibility.
The Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct - "the Code" - contains
rules and guidelines for our business

conduct and responsibilities vis-a-
vis colleagues, customers, guests,
suppliers, shareholders, authorities and
the world at large.

OUR CREDO:

Whatever you do, do with Integrity.
Wherever you go, go as a Leader.
Whomever you serve, serve with Caring.
Whenever you dream, dream with your All.

And never, ever give up.



We Values tie directly to this Code:

» Integrity: Employing the highest ethical
standards, demonstrating honesty, respect
and open communication.

» Customer Focus: Dedicating ourselves
to delivering experiences that delight our
customers.

=  Empowerment: Encouraging our people
to take initiative and do what is right.

= Accountability: Delivering on our
performance commitments and taking
responsibility for our actions and our own
situation.

= Responsibility: Ensuring that our
actions deliver competitive returns for our
stakeholders while ensuring benefit to our
employees, customers, owners, business

o
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partners and suppliers, as well as the
environment and the communities in which
we operate.

Respect the Law

Show respect for all persons in all
situations

Think Ethically

Act Fairly

Not to Discriminate against anyone for
any reason

Honesty and transparency

Loyal to the employer

Not to exploit the company's resources
Think of safely all the times

Take care of Earth
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Company Profile ™

Oriental Hotels Ltd, Radisson Hotel, Kathmandu is
incorporated initially under the Companies Act as
Private Limited company on 2050/10/05 and later
on, the Company got its status as Public Limited
on 2056/03/20. The shares of the Company are
listed and traded on the Nepal Stock Exchange
Limited (NEPSE).

The Radisson Hotel Kathmandu, a five star comfort
amidst Kathmandu city, an iconic landmark is
situated in Lazimpat, is nestled in the heart of City.
It is conveniently located and ideal destination for
both business and leisure travellers.
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The hotel offers an unforgettable experience,
boasting of 260 elegantly designed rooms
and suites along with many facilities, such as
rooftop swimming pool, fitness center, renowned
tranquility spa, high speed wireless internet and
six on-site restaurants and bar options offering a
variety of cuisines to cater all taste buds.



b B )

LILLL

| Sl

Bl | s

2080-2081

Registered Office

PO Box: 2269, Lazimpat, Kathmandu
Ph No.: 00977-1-4411818, 4423888
Fax No.: 00977-1-4422330

Share Registrar

NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.,
Lazimpat Kathmandu

Consortium Bankers

Nabil Bank Ltd.
Rastriya Banijya Bank
Nepal Bank Ltd.

Statutory Auditor

P.Y.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants, Kathmandu

Internal Auditor
Suvod Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Kathmandu

15
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Key Performance Indicators

Revenue (Rs.)

Gross profit (Rs.)

1,216,790,711

1,075,585,565

1,211,087,668

1,042,626,842

Profit from operations (Rs.) 358,492,200 416,295,080
Profit before taxation(Rs.) 150,082,231 201,946,069
Profit for the year(Rs.) 123,988,945 160,922,436
Earnings per share (Rs.) 10.99 14.27
Total assets (Rs.) 5,836,205,329 5,731,923,033
Shareholders’ equity (Rs.) 3,875,697,191 3,811,081,428
Net assets per share (Rs.) 129.52 125.08

Financial Ratios

Gross profit (%) 88.40% 86.09%
Operating Profit Ratio (%) 29.46% 3437%
Return on Shareholder (%) 3.20% 4.27%
Current ratio (times) 1.30 1.35
Market price per share (Rs.) 785 816
Occupancy (%) 42.67% 39.53%

Revenue (Rs.)

Gross profit (Rs.)

Profit from operations (Rs.)

72208 7,668
080/81 PR GHATVAN|

Y4V 042/626,842
(DA AR 1,075,585,565

079/80 | Zil& 2 kT 0)E10)
WEDTERE 358,492,200
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Profit before taxation(Rs.) Profit for the year(Rs.)

Earnings per share (Rs.)

160,922,436
123,988,945
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Net assets per share (Rs.)

129.52

080/81
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Chairman’s Message p-

We take great pride in our team of
exceptionally talented individuals who
bring a wealth of industry knowledge.
Their remarkable efforts have propelled
the hotel to its current success. They
have faced the challenges that come
with our growth head-on, consistently
demonstrating dedication and
commitment.

Subhadra Shrestha

Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to present you Annual Report and Financial Statement
of your Company for the financial year 2080/81 (2023/24) and discuss in brief about
the operational and financial performance of the company.

| am glad to share that we are able to convene our 27" Annual General Meeting
before Dashain. | would like to appreciate the effort of the management in doing
its best bearing in mind all the valuable suggestions provided by the shareholders
during our preceding annual general meetings. | also appreciate the valuable
suggestions of the shareholder and anticipate the same in future too.

Hotel Radisson experienced significant growth and transformation, driven by our
unwavering commitment to excellence and innovation. Despite the challenges
posed by the pandemic and economic crisis, our determination remained steadfast.
Through strategic planning, effective execution, and the dedication of our talented
team, we not only overcame these obstacles but also emerged stronger and more
resilient.

Tourism remains a crucial link between cultures and economies, promoting mutual
understanding and contributing significantly to global economic growth. As travel
restrictions are lifted and demand rebounds, the global tourism industry is on the
path to recovery.

As per the IMF's projection, the world economy, which grew 3.3 percent in 2023,
is expected to grow 3.2 percent in 2024, and 3.3 percent in 2025. The developed
economies, which expanded 1.7 percent in 2023, are also projected to grow 1.7



percent in 2024, and 1.8 percent in 2025. Similarly,
the emerging market and developing economies,
which expanded 4.4 percent in 2023, are projected
to grow 4.3 percent in both 2024 and 2025. The
Indian and Chinese economy are projected to
grow by 7.0 percent and 5.0 percent respectively
in 2024, compared to a respective growth of 8.2
percent and 5.2 percent in 2023. The Fund projects
that the economies of India and China will expand
by 6.5 percent and 4.5 percent, respectively in
2025

With the prediction of minor fluctuation in
the Economy of the developed countries, it is
predicted that there will be positive impact on
tourism sector in the days to come.

UNWTO has predicted that, following a strong
rebound in 2023, international tourism is expected
to fully recover pre-pandemic levels in 2024, with
initial estimates pointing to 2% growth above 2019
levels in international tourist arrivals. The positive
outlook for the sector is reflected in the latest
UNWTO Tourism Confidence Index survey, with
67% of tourism professionals indicating better
or much better prospects for 2024 compared to
2023

National Statistics Office (NSO) has estimated
Nepal's economic growth of 3.87 percent for
2023/24. The GoN has set a target of achieving
6.0 percent economic growth in the budget

2080-2081

for 2024/25. The effective implementation of
expenditures, policies, and programs outlined in
the budgets of the federal, provincial, and local
levels is expected to induce economic activities.
Along with this, the increment in private sector
investment is also expected to support the growth
target.

Total tourist arrival in Nepal during 2023 is
increased by 65% as compared to 2022. Nepal has
marked a total of 1,014,885 tourist arrival during
2023 which is only 85% of what we received in
2019.

The tourist arrival improved significantly in
2023/24. The GoN has declared 2023-2033 as
the Visit Nepal Decade and has set a target of
attracting 1.6 million tourists in 2024/25, with
various promotional programs in place like
expansion of tourism infrastructure, including
hotels and airports. It is expected to contribute
to a rise in foreign tourist arrival and the further
expansion of the tourism sector in 2024/25.

Due to continuous effort of private sectors and
the national tourism organization, tourist arrival
is increasing day by day. As statistics speaks,
tourism arrival in Nepal in 2023 is increased by
65%, it is really commendable effort of National
Tourism Organization in pushing up destination
promotion all over the world.
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Here, | would like to share that despite number
of tourist arrival is increasing, the ratio of high
spending tourist arrival seems to be in lower
side. Nepal as a brand is failed to market it as a
luxury destination. Lack of coherent marketing
and promotional campaign is the main reason our
country is unable to attract the required number
of high-spending travelers to fill the increasing
number high star rated hotel rooms. Further,
budget travelers have made up a majority of the
arrivals due to destination marketed by bloggers

and other social media influencers who cater to
the younger travelers.

Despite various challenges which have completely
negative impact on tourism sector, our hotel
succeeds to achieve substantial growth after covid.
The hotel generated total revenue of Rs. 1,217
million during the year under review. Similarly,
the hotel succeeds in making its net profit Rs. 124
million, in comparing a net profit of Rs.161 million
last year.
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1,000.00
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547-00 738.17
335:65

Shareholder's fund

2,053752
1,812722

069.70 070.71 071.72 072.73 073.74 074.75 075.76 076.77 077.78 078.79 079/80 080/81

Financial Year

3,811:083:875.70

2,261:402,227.82
2,024:171,964.54




2080-2081

Net Assets per share
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Governance Industry Challenges and Future Outlook

Corporate governance is the framework that
builds trust through efficient, transparent, and
accountable management, including the Board.
Our hotel's Board is confident that we have a
robust corporate governance structure in place,
which is thoroughly prepared, regularly reviewed,
and consistently updated.

At Radisson Hotel, Kathmandu, the Board
establishes policies and procedures at the highest
level, emphasizing professional standards and
corporate values that are instilled throughout
senior management and all employees. The
Company believes that upholding the highest
standards of governance is essential for creating
long-term value for its stakeholders, and there will
be no compromise in achieving this. To ensure
strong governance, the Company continuously
reviews, benchmarks, and strengthens its
governance mechanisms to meet evolving
standards and requirements.

To enhance our corporate governance framework,
we have established a highly independent
internal audit team, led by a director elected
from among public shareholders. This team also
includes another publicly elected director and an
independent professional accountant. The audit
committee ensures the hotel's internal controls
are both adequate and effective, providing
essential oversight and assurance.

Nepal's hotel industry has experienced significant
growth over the past few decades, driven largely
by the country's appeal as a top destination for
adventure tourism, spiritual retreats, and natural
beauty. The country's hotel sector caters to
both budget-conscious backpackers and luxury
travelers seeking high-end experiences, with
international brands.

The tourism and hotel industry in Nepal, however,
faced significant setbacks during the COVID-19
pandemic, which led to a sharp decline in
international arrivals and widespread closures.
This downturn tested the resilience of hotel
operators, many of whom adapted by focusing on
domestic tourism, implementing stringent health
protocols, and diversifying their service offerings.
Despite these challenges, the industry has begun
a strong recovery, with government initiatives
and promotional campaigns aimed at revitalizing
tourism, particularly through campaigns like "Visit
Nepal" and the promotion of new trekking routes,
adventure sports, and cultural tourism.

However, to fully realize its potential, we will need
to address several key challenges. Infrastructure
development remains a critical issue, with road
access, air connectivity, and reliable utilities still
lacking in many parts of the country. Investment
in human capital, including training hotel staff to
meet international service expectations, will also
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be essential to Nepal's ability to compete in the
global tourism market.

Lack of reliable accessibility from major tourist
outbound destination pose one of the big
challenge for our tourism. Thus is the urgent
need for the government to play the role of
catalyst by facilitating incentives for infrastructure
development by the industry. Room capacities are
also increasing in Kathmandu as well as outskirt
of Kathmandu. Different hotel brands are also
emerging in Nepal. Despite this increase in room
capacity and increased market competition,
Radisson Hotel Kathmandu looks forward to the
challenges as we continue to enjoy a position
of market leadership due to its brand value and
excellent service we offer. Our premier brand
has continuously augmented our platform as a
springboard for future growth.

We are constructing 10 storied apartment hotel
building nearby our main building, where in there
will be 30 apartments. We believe that this initiatives
will enhance our service quality to the standard of
Radisson Blue, thereby increasing our revenue and
net profit.

Looking forward, the outlook for Nepal's hotel
industry is cautiously optimistic. The global
demand for unique, sustainable travel experiences
is expected to benefit Nepal, which can leverage
its rich cultural heritage, iconic trekking routes,
and pristine natural environment. Moreover, the
rise of eco-tourism and wellness tourism presents
a significant opportunity for the country, with
potential investments in sustainable hotels, eco-
lodges, and wellness retreats expected to increase.

We are very much positive to the tourism growth
of Nepal, as such we expect further increase in our
total revenue and profit in the year ahead. We will
continue to look for opportunities for our business
growth by enhancing many synergies that we can
harness from a multi service strategy.

Our Team: Key to Our Success

Human  resources are fundamental to
organizational success. Human resources are
undeniably one of the most critical elements in
determining an organization's success. People are
at the core of any business, driving innovation,
executing strategies, and shaping the culture of
an organization.

The exceptional work culture at our hotel is a key
factor in fostering strong bonds within our team.
With clear job descriptions for all staff, along with
a cohesive and supportive environment, we ensure
that everyone can perform their duties efficiently
and with ease.

We take great pride in our team of exceptionally
talented individuals who bring a wealth of
industry knowledge. Their remarkable efforts
have propelled the hotel to its current success.
They have faced the challenges that come with
our growth head-on, consistently demonstrating
dedication and commitment.

Our talent management system has been a
significant asset in this competitive industry. In
recognition of our staff's invaluable contributions,
we continually explore new ways to reward them,
whether through healthcare, security, education,
training, or other benefits.

Our team'’s loyalty to the organization and their
focus on client satisfaction are the defining
qualities that set us apart from other businesses
in the industry.

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our team members for their tireless efforts and
look forward to their continued support in the
years to come.
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the Company at all times. It is my sincere thanks
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Directors’ Profile p

Mrs. Subhadra Shrestha is a
prominent business personality of
the nation having wide experience
in different business sector. Widely
travelled across the globe, Mrs.
Shrestha has more than 30 years
of experience in the Tourism
business. Since July 2017 she has
been director of Himalayan Travel
& Tours Pvt. Ltd. (HTT), Chitwan
Paradise Hotel Pvt. Ltd., Himalayan
Feeds Pvt. Ltd, Oriental Hatchery
Pvt. Ltd, Oriental Farms Pvt. Ltd.
She is also a promoter shareholder
of Kumari Bank Ltd. and then Yeti
Development Bank Limited.

SUBHADRA SHRESTHA
CHAIRMAN
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Mr. Anil Das Shrestha is a prominent business personality and entrepreneur
having more interest on social activities. Managing Director of the Company, Mr.

Shrestha has over 4 decades of experience in the Tourism Business. He is also a

Himalayan Feeds Pvt. Ltd, Oriental Hatchery Pvt. Ltd, Oriental Farms Pvt. Ltd since
their incorporation. He is also an active Member of Hotel Association Nepal and
Nepal Singapore Chamber of Commerce and Industries. He is also a promoter
shareholder of Kumari Bank Ltd. and then Yeti Development Bank Limited.

ANIL DAS SHRESTHA
MANAGING DIRECTOR

* & K Kk

‘ ‘ Director of the Himalayan Travel & Tours Pvt. Ltd, Chitwan Paradise Hotel Pvt. Ltd, ‘

Miss Bidhata Shrestha, the Joint Managing Director of the Company is posts
graduated in Advance Business Management from University of East Anglia,

UK. Her specialization was in business leadership and change management,
integrated business decision and strategic marketing management. She has more
than 9 years of working experience of Tourism Business. Being a young business
“ personality, after her post-graduation program, she has participated many “
conferences and workshops related to tourism marketing and promotion. She has
been an active member of Hotel Association of Nepal, Nepal German chamber

of Commerce and Industries, Rotary Kasthamandap, Society for development of
Lalitpur and Nepalese young entrepreneurs’ forum (NYEF).

BIDHATA SHRESTHA

JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR
* % Kk k
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Mrs. Mishu Shrestha Shrestha, Promoter Director of the company
has more than 30 years of experience in the Tourism business. Widely
‘ ‘ travelled Mrs. Shrestha has keen interest on philanthropic activities. ‘ ‘
Being a hotelier, she is also actively involved in sports tourism,
adventure tourism and spiritual tourism.

MISHU SHRESTHA
DIRECTOR

.88 8 & ¢

Mr. Sunil Lal Shrestha is one of the Elected Public Director of the
Company. He holds this position since 2005. He holds a Bachelor's Degree

in Commerce. Currently, he is working as a Deputy General Manager of
“ Himalaya Travel and Tours Pvt. Ltd. He was also a director of Alliance “
Insurance Company Ltd. (2009-2013). Mr. Shrestha has commendable,

more than 30 years of experience in inbound as well as outbound tourism
business. He is also a chairperson of the Audit committee of the hotel.

SUNIL LAL SHRESTHA

PUBLIC DIRECTOR
1. 0.0.8.8 ¢
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Young and dynamic investment banker and entrepreneur, Mr. Prakash Tiwari is
the elected Public Director of the company since 9th November, 2017 and is also a
member of the audit committee. He holds an MBA from GNDU, India. Mr. Tiwari has
assumed the role of Chief Investment Manager and Company Secretary at Hathway
‘ Investment Nepal Ltd. since 2013. He is the Founder President of Entrepreneurs
Nepal and Director of Hathway Finance Limited, which is acquired by Global IME
Bank Limited. As an entrepreneur, Mr. Tiwari has co-founded several startups such
as Share 247, Property 247, Nirmad.com, Kalpabirkshya, etc. Currently, he is also the
Chairman of Arjun Chaupari Village Municipality.

PRAKASH TIWARI

PUBLIC DIRECTOR
* & KKk

Mr. Rabindra Lal Shrestha is an Independent Director of the Company.

‘ He holds this position since 2076/06/13. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in “
Commerce. He has more than 35 years of experience in Nepalese tourism

industry as well as freight forward industry.

RABINDRA LAL SHRESTHA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

.88 8 & ¢
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Management
Discussion & Analysis ™~

Global Economic Outlook

Despite gradual improvement, the pace of the
global economic recovery has remained sluggish
and diverging. While the economic growth and
inflation in developed economies are nearing to
pre-COVID-19 level, majority of the emerging and
developing countries are still in recovery phase,
with inflation still being at a higher level.

The global economy, which was pushed towards
a recession due to the tight monetary policy
adopted to contain higher inflation, has remained
stronger than anticipated. However, the long-
term effect of the Covid pandemic, along with
ongoing geopolitical tensions in Russia-Ukraine
and the Middle East, are expected to limit the
world economic growth.

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has
projected a modest improvement in the
economic growth of the world economy and

advanced economies in 2025; while the growth
rate for emerging and developing economies will
remain stable. As per the IMF's projection, the
world economy, which grew 3.3 percent in 2023,
is expected to grow 3.2 percent in 2024, and
3.3 percent in 2025. The developed economies,
which expanded 1.7 percent in 2023, are also
projected to grow 1.7 percent in 2024, and 1.8
percent in 2025. Similarly, the emerging market
and developing economies, which expanded 4.4
percent in 2023, are projected to grow 4.3 percent
in both 2024 and 2025.

The Indian and Chinese economy are projected to
grow by 7.0 percent and 5.0 percent respectively
in 2024, compared to a respective growth of 8.2
percent and 5.2 percent in 2023. The Fund projects
that the economies of India and China will expand
by 6.5 percent and 4.5 percent, respectively in
2025.



Inflation, at the global level, is coming down.
While inflation in developed economies has
significantly improved, inflation in emerging
and developing economies still remains higher.
The IMF projects that world consumer inflation,
which was 6.7 percent in 2023, will be 5.9 percent
in 2024, and 4.4 percent in 2025. Inflation in
developed economies, which was 4.6 percent in
2023, is projected to be 2.7 percent in 2024, and
2.1 percent in 2025. Similarly, inflation in emerging
and developing economies, which was 8.3 percent
in 2023, is projected to be 8.2 percent in 2024,
and 6.0 percent in 2025. The average inflation in
India and China was 5.4 percent and 0.2 percent
respectively in 2023, which is projected to be 4.6
percent and 1.0 percent respectively in 20242. The
IMF projects 4.2 percent average inflation of India
and 2.0 percent of China in 2025.

Nepalese Economy

Nepal, like many other countries, experienced a
sharp economic downturn during the COVID-19
pandemic. However, growth has rebounded in
recent years, driven by the return of key sectors
such as agriculture, tourism and remittances.

National Statistics Office (NSO) has estimated
economic growth of 3.87 percent for 2023/24.
For the fiscal year 2024, Nepal's GDP growth is
projected at around 4.5% to 5%, according to the
Asian Development Bank (ADB) and World Bank
estimates. The growth is largely attributed to food
services, electricity and gas, and transportation
and storage. The construction, and manufacturing
sectors, however, remained contracted.

The GoN has set a target of achieving 6.0
percent economic growth in the budget for
2024/25. The effective implementation of
expenditures, policies, and programs outlined in
the budgets of the federal, provincial, and local
levels is expected to induce economic activities.
Along with this, the increment in private sector
investment is also expected to support the
growth target.

A o z0n
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Inflation in Nepal has been a concern, particularly
driven by higher global fuel prices and supply
chain disruptions. Inflation has been around 6% to
7% recently, according to the Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB), putting pressure on consumer purchasing
power.

Despite the pressure on prices until the first
quarter of 2023/24, the y-o-y consumer price
inflation gradually improved from the second
quarter and remained at 4.17 percent in midJune
2024. During this period, the inflation of the non-
food and services group has witnessed more
improvements than the inflation of the food and
beverage group. The current disinflation in Nepal
is attributed to the stable wholesale and consumer
price inflation in India, decrease in growth rate of
import price index and salary and wage rate index,
and weak domestic demand.

International Tourist Arrival

According to the UNWTO international tourism
ended 2023 at 88% of pre-pandemic levels, with
an estimated 1.3 billion international arrivals.
The unleashing of remaining pent-up demand,
increased air connectivity, and a stronger recovery
of Asian markets and destinations, are expected
to underpin a full recovery by the end of 2024.

Available data shows several destinations,
including both large, established destinations as
wellas small and emerging ones, reporting double-
digit growth in international arrivals in 2023 when
compared to 2019. Four sub-regions exceeded
their 2019 arrival levels: Southern Mediterranean
Europe, Caribbean, Central America and North
Africa.

International tourism is expected to fully recover
pre-pandemic levels in 2024, with initial estimates
pointing to 2% growth above 2019 levels. This
central forecast by UNWTO remains subject to
the pace of recovery in Asia and to the evolution
of existing economic and geopolitical downside
risks.



Hotels Limited

§ 2021 2022 2023 @2024°
40%
30%
20%
10%
09 2%
od e
==}
10% I -
-6%
20 12%
30 20%
34%
50%
-60%

International Tourist Arrivals (% change over 2019)

-3% l 1%
-20% 10%
% 18%
-30% .
40% 29%

35%

36%

22

5%

=
L= ]
-4% -5%

31%

-70% % 63% =
80% 9% = 72%
-90%
100% i
oo € g \\\\u\"‘ i sseet™ = W \;\t‘a\f"\é
Around 1286 million tourists travelled Africaandthe Americas both recovered about97%

internationally in 2023, which is 34% growth than
that of 2022, though still 12% fewer than in 2019.

Europe, the world's largest destination region,
recorded 700 million arrivals in 2023 to reach
nearly 94% of pre-pandemic levels. The Middle
East enjoyed the strongest relative increase across
regions in 2023 with arrivals climbing to 128% of
pre-pandemic numbers.

International
tourist arrivals

SARS (2003)

(millions)

and 90% respectivelt of its pre-pandemic visitors,
while Asia and the Pacific reached only 65%, due
to stronger pandemic-related restrictions.

Looking ahead, international tourism is set to
consolidate its recovery in 2024, backed by pent-
up demand, particularly from Asia and the Pacific
as destinations and markets open up. International
tourism is expected to fully recover pre-pandemic

Global econ. crisis (2009)

COVID-19 (2020)



levels in 2024, with initial estimates pointing to 2%
growth above 2019 levels in international tourist
arrivals.

Nepalese Tourism Statistics

Nepal's tourism industry has rebounded strongly
in 2023, crossing the coveted 1 million visitors
mark for the year. This is an important milestone
as the country aims to revive the sector following
the battering of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
growth has been propelled by rising arrivals from
India, China and the US, among other key source
markets. With new airports opening up and

2080-2081

massive investments lined up, Nepal is optimistic
the momentum will continue in 2024.

During the year 2023, total tourist arrival in Nepal
is 1,014,885, which was 614,148 in 2022. The last
instance of tourist arrivals crossing 1 million was
in 2019, pre-pandemic when the country received
1.19 million visitors. The highest number of
tourists came from neighbouring India, estimated
at 314,000. China and the US followed with 60,000
and 100,000 tourists, respectively. Chinese arrivals
sharply rose after borders reopened in March
2022, ending a 3-year restriction. Direct flights
also resumed between the countries.
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During 2024, upto August, Nepal witness 720,334
tourists reflecting the positive impact of tourism
in the country. The surge in tourist arrivals is a
positive indicator of the growth and resilience of
Nepal's tourism industry, showcasing its ability
to attract visitors despite economic challenges.
The sector remains optimistic about continued
growth in the future, which will further contribute
to Nepal's economic revival through the tourism
sector. The surge in tourist arrivals underscores
Nepal's enduring appeal as a premier destination
among travelers worldwide, highlighting the
country's diverse cultural heritage, natural beauty,
and adventure opportunities.

Tourism Environment of Nepal and
its Prospective

A country known as paradise for trekkers, laced
with a diverse landscape, the majestic snow-
capped mountains, charming hills and lush green
natural forests, Nepal has been one of the world's
greatest travel destinations, attracting more than
a million tourists annually.

From the competitive advantage point of view
of Nepal, Tourism is a main contributor for
its economic development. Be it for foreign
currency earning or for employment generation,
tourism can contribute a lot for country's overall
development. It is also very important to tumble
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down the benefits of tourism economic generation
to the rural level as well.

There is an increasing trend of internal tourists
visiting different parts of Nepal. Given the growing
commotion of people, lured by the natural, cultural,
historical, and ethnic diversity, Nepal is capable of
transforming the overall socio-economic status
of the country. Hence, use of local products and
skills play a pivotal role in promoting tourism that
can lead to economic prosperity of the country.

It is worth noting that the government has
designated 2025 as Visit Nepal Year. Additionally,
the period from 2023 to 2032 is being celebrated
as the tourism decade, with the ambitious goal of
attracting 3.5 million tourists.

Under the new plan, Nepal will launch promotion
campaigns in China, India and Bangladesh, of
them the former two being the largest sources of
tourists for Nepal in normal years. There is a plan
as well to promote Nepal as wedding destination
and destination for meetings, conferences and
exhibitions and spiritual tourism with packages of
yoga, wellness and spa to be offered.

Nepal Government together with Nepal Tourism
Board and various tourism organizations, trying
to revive Nepalese tourism through all possible

measures. Our hotel also in the ready position to
welcome our valued customer for their service.
A big hope is ahead for tourism growth and our
business success.

However, non operation of Pokhara International
Airport and Bhairahawa Regional Airport in its full
capacity and lack of connectivity to nearest tourist
generating destination of India has hampered
Nepal’s Tourism industries.

Financial Performance

The Nepalese hotel industry is also benefited
from a resurgence in travelers seeking adventure,
cultural experiences, and natural beauty. As
Nepalese tourism is recovering in a positive pace,
the performance of our hotel is also in line with
it. Despite heavy market competition in the hotel
business, the hotel is able to book a net profit of
12.40 crore in the financial year 2080/81. Prudent
cost control measures ensured optimal utilization
of resources and sustained profitability. Strong
financial position of the company provides a solid
foundation for future investments and expansion
opportunities.

Major financial performance highlights during the
reporting financial year are presented below:

Revenue (Rs.)

Expenditure (Rs.)

Operating Profit (Rs.)

Finance Cost (Rs.)

Profit before depreciation and tax (Rs.)
Depreciation and Extraordinary Exp (Rs.)
Tax (Current and Deferred Tax Liability) (Rs.)
Net Profit (Rs.)

Room Stock (No.)

Room Sales (Rs.)

Occupancy Rate (%)

Average Room Rate (Rs.)

Average Room Rate per available room (Rs.)

1,216,790,710.72 1,211,087,667.70 0.47%
858,298,510.35  794,792,587.28 7.99%
358,492,200.37 416,295,080.42 -13.89%

99,705,842.00 111,369,036.32 -10.47%
258,786,358.37 304,926,044 -15.13%
108,704,127.77  102,979,975.12 5.56%

26,093,285.64 41023633.08 -36.39%
123,988,944.96  160,922,435.90 -22.95%

94,900.00 94900 0.00%
425,741,747.20  368,465,185.00 15.54%
42.67 39.53 7.94%
10,072.54 9032.94 11.51%
4,486.21 3882.67 15.54%



Our hotel has collected total revenue of Rs. 1217
million in the current year which is almost the
same revenue of last years revenue of Rs. 1211
million. This shows a slightly increase of 0.47%
only as compared to previous year.

Occupancy rate of the hotel during the year under
review stood at 42.67%, which is 7.94% more
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than the previous years' occupancy rate. Similarly
average room rate and average room rate per
avalilabe room is also increased by 11.51% and
15.54% respectively during the year as compared
to previous financial year.

If we analyze the revenue mix during the year
in various segment, it is observed that revenue
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from room sales and airport lounge have been
increase however sale of food and beverage and
other revenue of the hotel has been decreased as
compared to previous year.

Though the total revenue of the hotel has been
slightly increased, operating expenses is also
increased, which is 7.99% than that of previous
years. During the year, Cost of Food, Beverages
and Provision consumed is decreased by 16%,
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however, Operating Supplies cost is increased by
6%, Employee Benefit Expenses is increased by
15% and Administration and General Expenses is
increased by 26%.

Operating profit of the hotel in the previous
financial year was Rs. 416.29 million. However,
this year the hotel marked operating profit of
Rs. 358.49 million, which is 14% less than that of
previous year's operating profit.

The finance cost of the hotel has been decreased
by 10% than that of previous year. This is due to
a decrease in interest rate in the banking sector.

Depreciation and amortization for the year is
reported as Rs. 108.70 million, an increase of Rs.
5.72 million compared to previous year which is
6% higher than that of previous year.

With all these operational results, the hotel is able
to book a net profit of Rs. 123.992 million this year.
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Financial Position of the Company

The hotel reported a sustainable financial position
as on Ashadh end 2081, with total assets of Rs.
5836.20 million as compared to previous years'
total assets of Rs. 5731.92 million.

During the year under review, significant
improvements have been done in Hotel's new
building. The value addition in this building during
the year is around 343.67 million, which will be
capitalized upon completion of the building. We

2080-2081

are expecting to complete this building to full
operation at around fourth quarter of the financial
year 2081/82. Depreciation on PPE has been
charged as per our accounting policy.

Shareholders Fund as on Ashadh end 2081 stood
at Rs. 3875.70 million as compared to Rs. 3811.08
million of previous year, which is 2% higher than
that of previous year. Similarly, hotel's net assets
per share stood at Rs. 343.56 as compared to Rs.
337.83 of previous year.
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In review of hotels' past twenty three years financial position, the company is succeeded to move
forward in right direction making its financial position stronger and more sustainable.

Rs in Lacks

Financial | Share ‘ Fixed Total GOP ‘ Profit Net Profit Reserve &
Year Capital Assets | Transaction Before Tax Surplus
2058/59 4,951.00 12,952.00 1,783.00 155.00 (1,108.00) | (1,108.00) (2,787.00)
2059/60 4,952.00 | 13,000.00 1,766.00 91.00 (1,210.00) | (1,210.00) (3,997.00)
2060/61 4,953.00 | 13,120.00 2,509.00 644.00 (637.00) (637.00) (4,634.00)
2061/62 4,953.00 | 13,205.00 2,155.00 348.00 (746.00) (746.00) (5,380.00)
2062/63 4,954.00 | 13,340.00 2,801.00 843.00 (279.00) (279.00) (5,658.00)
2063/64 4,956.00 | 13,383.00 3,286.00 1,109.00 36.00 36.00 (5,622.00)
2064/65 4,966.00 | 13,674.00 3,851.00 1,346.00 234.00 234.00 (4,388.00)
3065/66 4,969.00 | 13,983.00 4,459.00 1,486.00 505.00 141.00 (5,246.00)
2066/67 4,966.00 | 14,277.46 5,006.63 1,655.42 700.93 513.83 (4,732.00)
2067/68 4,970.00 | 14,415.00 6,031.00 2,055.00 996.00 814.00 (3,919.00)
2068/69 4,971.00 | 19,507.00 7,101.00 2,613.00 1,470.00 1,115.00 (2,803.00)
2069/70 4,971.00 | 20,220.00 8,438.00 3,101.00 1,539.00 1,208.00 (1,595.00)
2070/71 4,978.00 | 20,596.00 | 10,827.00 | 4,173.00 2,712.00 2,101.00 506.00
2071/72 5481.00 | 21,187.00| 10,568.00 | 3,776.00 2,478.00 1,902.00 1,910.00
2072/73 6,598.00 | 21,774.00 9,029.11 2,806.00 1,484.26 1,175.00 2,012.00
2073/74 791726 | 23,563.78 | 11,72040 | 4,310.27 2,984.48 2,394.97 10,204.92

2074/75 9,342 23,217 12,581 5,195 3,729 2,909 11,193
2075/76 10,744 24,240 13,271 5,107 3,937 3,085 11,870
2076/77 11,281 23,781 7,883 1,985 818 669 10,997
2077/78 11,281 22,473 1,312 -1,387 -2,618 -2,034 8,961

2078/79 11,281 22957 6222 569.91 19,7.90 -246.02 8,364
2079/80 11,281 39511 12111 3,133.16 2,019 1,609.23 26,829
2080/81 11,281 38953 12168 2498 1501 1240 27476

On reviewing the past trends of the hotel, the hotel
is able to grab continuous net profit from financial
year 2063/64 onwards till the financial year
2076/77. However, due to Covid 19 pandemics,
the hotel incurred loss in two consecutive year

2077/78 and 2078/79. Since tourism recovery
from the pandemic is easing day by day and the
travel trends is also increasing, we are able to
book a profit of 123.99 million in the reporting
financial year.
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Key Financial Ratios:

Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio 1.30 1.35
Quick Ratio 0.51 0.53

Profitability Ratio

Gross Profit Ratio 88% 85%
Operating Profit Ratio 29% 34%
Earnings before Interest and Tax Ratio 20.52% 25.87%
Price Earnings Ratio 71.43% 57.20%
Return on capital employed 4.79% 6%

Capital Structure Ratio
Debt Equity Ratio 26% 25%

Segmental Performance from Airport Lounge increased by 23% than that
of previous year. Other revenues, which includes

During the financial year Room Revenue has been income from spa, business center, meeting room
increased from 368.47 million to 425.74 million rental chargesl |aundryl te|ephonel health club and

marking 16% increase from previous years’ Room  other miscelaneous income, has been decreased
Revenue. F&B Revenue has been decreased by 8%

by 40% during this financial year.
than that of previous years F&B Revenue. Revenue

Segment Revenue Analysis

Total
Others
Airport Lounge

Fodd & Beverages

II“‘

Room Sales

200.00 400.00 600.00 800.00 1,000.00 1,200.00 1,400.00

m80/81 1179/80
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Current years' Performance Review

Performance comparision between current year's performance till this report is in preparation, i.e. 31¢
August and the corresponding period of previous year is presented below:

Particulars

16th July 2024 to
31st August 2024

17th July 2023 to
31st August 2023

Increment %

Revenue

Operating Expenditure
Operating Profit
Finance Cost
Depreciation

Profit Before Tax

Tax Provision

Net Profit

Net Profit Ratio

Occupancy Rate

119,669,559.97
99,230,617.51
20,438,942.46
9,068,766.12
8,843,987.00
2,526,189.34
536,815.23
1,989,374.11
1.66%

32.88%

103,948,920.83
101,300,005.27
2,648,915.56
7,247,886.35
9,825,000.00
(14,423,970.79)
(14,423,970.79)
-13.88%

30.86%

15.12%
-2.04%
671.60%
25.12%
-9.98%
-117.51%

-113.79%
-111.98%

2.02%
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Risk Management p

W
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NAGEMENT

Risk refers to the potential of an event or condition
to cause harm, loss, or an undesirable outcome.
In any business or organizational context, risk is
the possibility that a company’s objectives may
not be met due to various uncertainties. These
uncertainties could stem from factors such as
market fluctuations, operational failures, financial
risks, legal and regulatory changes, environmental
and natural events, technological disruptions etc.

In business, managing risk is critical because
unmanaged risks can lead to significant financial
losses, reputational damage, or even business failure.

Risk management is the structured process of
identifying, evaluating, and addressing potential
threats or uncertainties that could negatively
impact an organization's goals. It involves
anticipating risks before they occur, assessing
the likelihood and severity of these risks, and
implementing strategies to either prevent,

g control

minimize, or cope with their effects. The goal
of risk management is to reduce the potential
harm while maximizing opportunities, ensuring
the organization can achieve its objectives with
minimal disruptions.

Continuous emergence of brand bearer hotels
in the country has poised that the hotel industry
has become very competitive. We are very vigilant
about the future state of competition and have
prepared ourselves to face the new challenges.
The Board of Directors of the Hotel assume
responsibility for ensuring the safe business
environment by formulating the prudent business
policies.

Management of the likelihood of occurrence of
an event that may hamper business objectives are
very crucial for any business. Our Board believes
that risk management is one of the key issues on
business continuity and sustainability of business



operation. In our hotel, risk management system is
well structured for risk identification and controls
it, specific to the industry.

In our hotel, we have a strong and robust
framework and processes by which an
organization’s risk management activities are
directed and controlled at the highest level. It
ensures that the organization's approach to risk
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is aligned with its overall strategy, objectives, and
values. Essentially, it is the oversight mechanism
that guides how risks are identified, assessed,
managed, and communicated across all levels of
the organization. Risk governance aims to ensure
that risks are identified, assessed, controlled,
and monitored in a structured and responsible
manner, aligning with an organization's objectives
and values.

Risk Governance Structure of the Hotel

The Risk Management team of the hotel is
always proactive in identifying the types of risk
exposure, measuring those potential risks and
developing strategies to mitigate or control the
same. Risk Management is an essential element
of our corporate governance structure and

Board

Audit
Committee

Department Heads

Risk associated Units
of the Hotel

strategy development process and the Hotel
has successfully and strategically structured
appropriate systems, policies and procedures in
all areas of operations with periodical reviews to
ensure adequacy and adherence.
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The Risk Management team of Radisson Hotel
Kathmandu is led by Executive Director working
closely with the management team to formulated
risk management framework for various types of
risk facing by the hotel. Functional heads of the
Hotel together with the General Manager make
up the Risk Management team.

The Risk Management Team is empowered to
receive direct access to, and obtain regular reports
from, all department heads, and be provided
with any information it requests with regards to
its responsibilities. The team has the authority
to engage independent professional advisors on
matters within its purview.
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A methodological process ensures various
identified risks and assessment in terms of
business impact, likelihood of occurrence and
mitigation process. The Risk Management Team of

the Hotel reviews the identified risks on a regular
basis and instruct appropriate individual to take
responsibility to mitigate the risk in due course of
time in priority manner.
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Risk Matrix

(based on scoring of Applicable Threat Scenarios)

Probability i _
Very Likely
(1-4 per year) e B |
Probable s
(<1/yr.to1in1-2.5 1 g‘
years) g
Possible -
(<1in 2.5 yrs. and
up to1in S years)
Unlikely 6 = 8
(<1in S yrs. or up
R Moderate Risk
Improbable
(<1in 10 years)
Minor Moderate Serious Major Catastrophic
Consequences

Major risk facing by the hotel are identified and are considered and reviewed perennially at appropriate
level of the management. Describe below are the material foreseeable risks which have material effect
on our business system. Entire risks are not describe hereunder. The risk we consider not so material may
later on can be the major risk to the business. Entire risks require careful management to ensure that
the hotel's high standards are maintained, while safeguarding its operations, reputation, and financial
health.

Risks Category Risk Control/Mitigation Mechanism

Competition Risk - Regularly upgrade facility and service of the Hotel
- Creativity and innovation in product and services of the Hotel to

Competition risk refers to the potential . . .
provide unique experience to the guests

negative impacts that competitive

forces and dynamics can have on a - Strictly adherence to the brand standards and Standard
business or organization. Operating Procedures
- Bear in mind a mantra "Delighted Customers are our
ambassador"
- Maintain warm relationship with tour operator and travel
agencies.
Information Technology Risk - Regularly monitor and ensure all ERP systems are in place.

- Backup plan (Disaster Recovery Plan) in place. Maintain

IEnELEn _Eanmeigy () - G minimum down time in case of system failure emergency.

refers to the potential threats and

vulnerabilities that can impact an - Ensure proper protection against cyber-attack and mishandling
organization's information systems, of the system.
data, and technology infrastructure. - Keep on upgrading the system in use appropriately to keep pace

with information requirement.
- Regular penetration testing of the system.



Hotels Limited

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the potential
for adverse changes in the value of
investments or financial instruments

due to fluctuations in interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk, is the potential
for financial losses or gains due to
fluctuations in the exchange rates

between two or more currencies.

Commodity Price Risk

Commodity risk refers to the exposure
of businesses to the volatility in the
prices of commodities.

Human Resource Risk

Human resource (HR) risk refers to
the potential risks and uncertainties
associated with workforce, including
its employees, contractors, and human
capital management practices.

Credit Risk
Trade Receivables

Trade receivable risk, also known as
accounts receivable risk or credit risk,
refers to the potential financial losses
that a business or organization may
face when its customers or clients fail
to pay their outstanding debts on time
or in full.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the potential
risk that an organization may not be
able to meet its short-term financial
obligations when they become due
without incurring excessive costs.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial
loss, business disruption, or damage to
an organization's reputation resulting
from inadequate or failed internal
processes, systems, people, or external
events.

Negotiation with highly reputed banks and financial institution
for favorable terms and condition for credit facility.

Provide due consideration in holding receivables and payables in
foreign currency

Timely settlement of dues in foreign currency
Continuously monitor foreign currency exchange rate.

Maintain relationship with long term suppliers
Maintain optimum level of store of the inventories

Organize regular training programs and provide cross exposure
training opportunities to the staff.

Maintain amicable relationship between employer and
employee.

Foster employees in realizing importance of propriety and self-
belongingness to the company.

Adjusting the salary level of the key team members to be more
competitive in the market.

Strict adherence to laid down safety standards and procedures.

Credit rating of the customers.

Actively monitor and review the business status of the debtors.
Regular follow up for collecting outstanding amount in
stipulated time frame.

Mechanism to provide credit to the credit approved agents.

Preparation of Cash forecast on monthly basis and regular
monitoring of cash forecast, cash balance available and actual
collections.

Maintain overdraft facility from reputed banks and financial
institutions.

Bylaws and Procedures of various operation are in place.
Outsource Internal Audit to review and report operational
deficiencies together with financial review on quarterly basis.
Insurance of various risk of the hotel including fidelity cover.
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Corporate Governance p

Corporate governance is the framework of
rules, practices, and processes that guide how a
company is managed and controlled. It defines
the responsibilities and relationships between
a company’s management, board of directors,
shareholders, and other stakeholders. The goal
of corporate governance is to ensure that the
company operates in a transparent, ethical, and
accountable manner, while safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.
It covers decision-making processes, risk
management, compliance with laws, and the
overall conduct of the business, ensuring long-
term sustainability and trust.

Corporate governance is essential for ensuring that
companies are run ethically, transparently, and in
alignment with the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders. It helps build investor trust,
enhances long-term sustainability, and promotes
responsible business practices that contribute to
overall economic and social well-being.

Top level Management of the company feel a
sense of responsibility, ownership, and dedication
to promoting and upholding good corporate
governance practices. Moreover, the followings
are the key areas, where management is
committed for :

- Ethics and integrity
- Accountability

- Responsibility for Stakeholders

- Long term perspective

- Transparency and openness

- Compliance with laws and regulations

- Risk management

- Empowerment of Independent directors
- Investors relation

- Continuous improvement

- Alignment with shareholders
Training and Development

Ensuring high level of transparency through
sufficient financial and operational disclosures
is a key factor of corporate governance. We
base our corporate governance philosophy on
openness in communication both in house as
well as outward with all stakeholders. We believe
in institutionalization of corporate governance
in all level in our organization with best practice,
policies and procedures.

Sustainability is everything in the journey of
success of any organization and it is evident that
the our company has continually maintained new
innovations and expansions, deriving growth
from across the economy while diversifying the
risk component significantly. Hotel Radisson
Kathmandu observes the Corporate Governance
principles and practices as a key to sustainable
corporategrowthandlongtermshareholdersvalue
creation. It believes that Corporate Governance is
one of the main areas to be focused for integrity
and transparency of the business as a whole. It
also values and believes in excellence in corporate
governance as a good corporate entity and is
committed to ethical corporate practices based
on morality, sincerity, impartiality, professionalism
and accountability for the benefit of its entire
stakeholders and for sustainable improvement.

The Board of Directors of Hotel is committed
in maintaining highest standards of Corporate
Governance as laid down in Companies Act
of Nepal and as directed by Security Board of
Nepal. The Board ensures that the Company’s
responsibility to uphold the highest standards of
business integrity, ethical values, transparency and
professionalism in all its activities are maintained.
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In order to fulfill the obligation towards the
stakeholder of the hotel, Board of Directors are
providing entrepreneurial leadership for the
Company, formulate corporate strategic goals,
values and standards, reviewing performance and
so on.

Transparent

Consensus Accountable

Oriented

Good
Governance

Follows
Rule of Law

Responsive

Board of Directors of the company comprised as
follows:

Mrs. Subhadra Shrestha - Chairman

Mr. Anil Das Shrestha - Managing Director
Ms. Bidhata Shrestha - Joint Managing Director
Mrs. Mishu Shrestha - Director

Mr. Sunil Lal Shrestha - Public Director

Mr. Prakash Tiwari - Public Director

Mr. Rabindra Lal Shrestha - Independent Director

Diversity in the Board

A diverse Board ensures effective, efficient and
independent decision making. The Board is
well balanced with Executive and Non Executive
Directors, making sure that the Board would not
be dominated by any individual or a group of
members in the decision making process. Further,
the board is also balanced in terms of gender
participation.

2080-2081

Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The Board consists of 7 Directors out of which
2 directors are elected from public shareholders
and 1 independent director. Similarly, out of 7
directors, 5 directors are non executive directors.

Female Directors

In the Board, the chairman and two ther directors
are Female Directors exceeding the regulatory
requirement of one female director on the Board
of a listed company.

Role of the Board

The Board of Directors have vast roles to perform
to achieve the targeted performance of the
Company and to bring out valuable input to the
decision- making process of the Company. The
Board is expected to act in good faith in the best
interests of shareholders of the Company. They
also require to lead and guide the Management of
the Company to meet their Strategic Goals. Further,
The Board is expected to maintain and oversee the
compliance with requirements of the governing
bodies such as Company Registrar Office, Security
Board of Nepal etc. Major role the board has to
play are to formulate strategic direction, execution
and operation of governance and continuous
monitoring company’s performance.

Role of Chairman

Major role of the Chairman are as follows:

- Leading the board
- Overseeing hotels’ strategy and management

- Overseeing that external relations are in place
including with external stakeholders such
as shareholders, creditors, travel and tour
agencies, corporate clients etc.

- Overseeing the implementation of corporate
governance policies.

- Overseeing the compliance with all regulatory
requirements of the nation.
Role of Managing Director

The role of Managing Director as outlined by the
Board of Director are :

- Managing the Executive Management in day-
to-day operations.
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- Review and overseeing the implementation of
key initiatives to meet the objectives of the
Company.

- lLeading the Executive Management in
achieving the corporate objectives set by the
board and included in the corporate plan of
the Company.

Board Meeting

Convening of Board Meetings facilitates them
to discuss the topics of discussion in detail with
the input of the directors themselves with their
diverse knowledge and experience. The Board

sure that the directors are briefed properly on the
issues to be discussed at the Board Meetings.

The Chairman prepares the agenda for the
meeting with the consultation of the Managing
Director, Directors and Company Secretary. The
Notice of Meeting, Agenda and Board Papers
are circulated among the board members in
advance. Board members utilize the period of the
advance notice to review the information, request
additional information, study the agenda and
prepare for the board meeting.

During the financial year 2080/81, the Board met

8 times. The number of meetings attended by the

meets alteast quarterly and additional meetings . .
9 y g board directors are given below :

will be held as required and the Chairman makes

1st 2nd

3rd
Meeting

4th
Meeting

5th
Meeting

6th
Meeting

7th
Meeting

8th
Board Members Meeting

Meeting | Meeting

Mrs. Subhadra Shrestha

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Mr. Anil Das Shresth o o o ® ® ® ® o
r. Anil Das Shrestha di | 4 | dib  dib | dib | dib | 4ib | 4id

Ms. Bidhata Shrestha

Mrs. Mishu Shrestha

o ho | ho
o ho | ho
o ho | ho
o ho | ho
o ho | ho
o ho | ho
o ho | ho

Mr. Sunil Lal Shrestha

Mr. Prakash Tiwari

Mr. Rabindra Lal Shrestha
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Internal Control and Risk Management
initiatives:

Internal control in an organization refers to
the processes, policies, and procedures put in
place to ensure the company's operations are
effective, efficient, and in compliance with laws
and regulations. Internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the organization’s assets,
ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial
reporting, and help the company achieve its
objectives while minimizing risks, including fraud
and errors.

Risk management is the process of identifying,
assessing, and controlling potential threats
or uncertainties that could negatively affect
an organization’s operations, financial health,
or objectives. These threats, or risks, can arise
from various sources, such as financial markets,
operational failures, legal liabilities, natural
disasters, or cybersecurity threats. The goal of
risk management is to minimize the impact of
these risks and turn potential challenges into
opportunities by proactively addressing them.

The Board is responsible to introduce adequate
internal control system and risk management
system to safeguard shareholders investment and
Company's assets. An effective and comprehensive
system of internal controls is in place in the
Company comprising of internal checks, internal
audit and financial and other controls required to
carry out the business in an orderly manner and to
safeguard the assets.

In order to be in place anindependent and biasfree
internal control system, the following provisions
are laid by the Board :

1. Comply international directives issued by
Radisson Hotel International.

2. Strictly follow standard operating system
(SOP) by all departments.

3. Periodic review of internal control system as
per approved standard by Radisson Hotel
International.

4. Provide montly report to Radisson Hotel
International about findings on internal
review and control system.

5. Perform  quarterly
independent auditor.

internal  audit by

2080-2081

6. Review internal audit report by management
and audit committee.

Management Committee has been established by
the Board to assist in ensuring the effectiveness of
the Company’s daily operations are in accordance
with the business direction/strategies and the
Company'’s operations are in line with the annual
corporate budget, and approved policies.

The board has also formed Audit Committee to
review the adequacy and integrity of the system
of internal controls related to financial reporting.

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews
internal control issues identified by the Internal
Auditor, regulatory authorities, External Auditors
and management, and evaluates the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. They also review the
internal audit function with particular emphasis
on the scope of audits, independence, resources
and quality of the same.

The recommendations made by the external
auditors in connection with the internal control
system in previous years were reviewed during
the year and appropriate steps have been taken
to implement them. Further Improvements in
line with industry and/or non-industry best
practices are also implemented on an on-going
basis.

Audit Committee:

The Board has formed Audit Committee as follows:

Mr. Sunil Lal Shrestha, Public Director - Chairperson
Mr. Prakash Tiwari, Public Director - Member
Mr. Binay Prakash Shrestha, FCA - Member

The committee comprises of two directors elected
from public shareholders including chairperson
and one from professional members.

The Audit Committee is empowered to seek any
information it so desires from the management
and staff of the Company or from external parties
whilst reserving the right to meet the external/
internal auditors exclusively as and when required.
Furthermore, the Committee is authorised to
retain independent legal, accounting or other
advisors in order to achieve its objectives.
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Role and Responsiblities of Audit
Committee:

- Consider adequacy of risk management and
internal control framework

- Assist Board of Directors in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities for the financial
reporting process, the audit process and the
Company'’s process for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations, Company policies
and procedures and the code of conduct.

- Receive and review risk management reports

- Receive and review reports from internal and
external auditors

Total 5 meetings were held during 2080/81, where
all members were present in all the meetings.

Key Functions Performed During The
Year Uunder Review

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed
the Company’'s quarterly and annual financial
statements. The Committee also discussed
with the External Auditor, Internal Auditor and
management the matters communicated to the
Committee by the External Auditor and Internal
Auditor in their reports to the Committee on the
audit for the year.

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility
for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the External Auditor in-line with professional
standards and regulatory requirements. The Audit

Whistle Blower Policy

hacker
cornrnert:lal

Committee has recommended to the Board of
Directors that M/S PYC & Associates, Chartered
Accountants be re-appointed as Auditors for the
financial year 81/82.

Remuneration and falicities provided to
Chairman, Managing Director, Directors
and General Manager

During the financial year 2080/81, Board Meeting
allowance of Rs. 9000 per meeting has been
provided to all directors and Rs. 10000 per
meeting to the Chaiman.

Audit committee members are given meeting
allowance of Rs. 4000 per meeting.

During the year, Rs. 1,36,50,000 to Managing
Director, Rs 7,361,906to Joint Managing Director
and Rs. 11,042,216 to General Manager has
been paid as remuneration. In addition to this,
as per agreement, their residential expenses
on electricity, water supply, telephone, repair
and maintenance are also paid as per actual bill
submitted.

Related Party Transactions

There are no material related party transactions
during the year that have conflict with the interest
of the Company. Transactions entered into with
related parties during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and at arms’ length
basis and were thoroghly reviewed by internal as
well as external auditors.
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A whistleblowing policy established by an
organization to encourage and protect
employees, contractors, and stakeholders who
report unethical, illegal, or improper conduct
within the organization. The goal of such a
policy is to promote transparency, accountability,
and the responsible handling of concerns or
complaints, while also protecting whistleblowers
from retaliation.

Whistle blowing policies are essential for
promoting a culture of transparency and
accountability  within  organizations.  This
empower individuals to report wrongdoing
without fear of reprisal and provide a framework
for addressing and resolving issues internally.
Additionally, organizations that implement
effective whistleblowing policies are better

A o z0n
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equipped to detect and prevent misconduct,
ultimately protecting their reputation and
integrity.

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and
has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behavior. The reported unethical
behavior will be appropriately investigated and
acted upon once such disclosures are received.
The Company regards the attempts to victimize
or discriminate against a Whistle-blower as
potentially gross misconduct. Chairman of
Audit Committee is the focal person for whistle
blowing mechanism, who is responsible for
handing the issues. In our company, no person
has been denied access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.
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R
Investors Informations p>

Listing in Nepal Stock Exchange : Shareholding pattern :

Oriental Hotels Ltd., Radisson Hotel Kathmandu, Oriental Hotels Ltd has total number of 24,079
is a public limited company. Its ordinary shares shareholders at the end of F/Y 2080/81. Their
are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange and traded in shareholding patterns are given below :

open market.

No of Share Holders | No of Share Holding

01-500 23,508 1,379,306 12.23%
501-1000 290 228,992 2.03%
1001-1500 90 112,489 1.00%
1501-2000 51 89,525 0.79%
2001-5000 62 196,302 1.74%
5001-10000 31 218,252 1.93%
10001-50000 35 776,644 6.88%
50001 and above 12 8,279,394 73.39%
Total 24,079 11,280,904 100%

No of Share Holding

W 01-500

H 501-1000
1001-1500

W 1501-2000

N 2001-5000

m 5001-10000

W 10001-50000

M 50001 and above

Analysis of Shareholding Pattern

Individual 10,920,438 97%
Institutional 360,466 3%
Total 11,280,904 100.00%



Shareholding Pattern

0,920,438

360,466, 3%
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M Individual

[ Institutional

Name of the Shareholders holding more than 1% of total share

Sarswoti Devi Shrestha
Subhadra Shrestha
Anil das Shrestha
Bilasha Shrestha
Mishu Shrestha
TOTAL

Chairman
Managing Director

v A W N -

Director

20 highest shareholders of the Company

3,836,836 34.01%
2,249,126 19.94%
1,523,450 13.50%
145,298 1.29%
112,848 1.00%
7,867,558 69.74%

No. of Shareholdings
Shareholder’s Name
080/81

Sarswoti Devi Shrestha
Subhadra Shrestha
Anil Das Shrestha
Bilasha Shrestha
Mishu Shrestha

Sunil Lal Shrestha
Namita Shrestha
Sangita K.C

Arati Shrestha
Bishakha Shrestha
Anuradha Shrestha
Ritesh Regmi

Ram Krishna Simkhada

—_— ) -
D2 VWO NoO VA WN S

3,836,836
2,249,126
1,523,450
145,298
112,848
68,093
61,249
57,613
56,424
56,424
56,424
55,611
48,493
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14 Bharat Regmi 41,857
15 Shova Mishra 41,552
16 Alaka Investment 36,243
17 Parwati Dahal 35,095
18 Ewaraj Bhattarai 34,096
19 Priya Raj Regmi 33,910
20 Crystal Kanchanjungha Securities Pvt. Ltd. 31,516

Total 8,582,156

Trend of Market Share Price of the Company

“ Market Price at the end of the fiscal year Rs.

1 2070/71 775
2 2071/72 682
3 2072/73 583
4 2073/74 654
5 2074/75 521
6 2075/76 607
7 2076/77 329
8 2077/78 654
9 2078/79 483
10 2079/80 799
11 2080/81 785

Market Value Per Share

i Market Value Per Share
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Analysis of Share Price Fluctuation during the F/Y 080/81

Maximum Price
Minimum Price

Year End Price

885
639.50
785

SHARE MARKET PRICE
080/81

885

Maximum Price

Redressal of investors complaints

Our company has very strong mechanism to
address and resolve grievances or concerns raised
by the investors. It is a mechanism designed to
protect investors' rights, ensure transparency, and
maintain trust in the financial markets. The process
involves investigating the complaint, taking
appropriate corrective actions, and ensuring
timely resolution to provide relief to the investor.

Our hotel acknowledges and honours the trust
our investors pose in us by providing a steady
return on their investment. We rigorously

639.5

Minimum Price

Year End Price

enforce a transparent relationship with all our
stakeholders.

During annual general meeting of the company,
many  shareholders  provides = numerious
suggestions to the Board of Directors for the
growth of the business. Board of Directors always
adhere the suggestions so provided and welcome
further suggestions for the betterment and uplift
of the company's performance.

During the financial year 2080/81, the company
has not received any complaints neither in written
nor in email from the shareholders.
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Segmental Informations p

An operating segment in an organization is
a distinct part of the business that engages
in revenue-generating activities and whose
financial performance is regularly reviewed for
resource allocation and performance assessment.
Each operating segment typically operates
independently, focusing on a specific product,
service, geographic area, or customer group.

The purpose of creating operating segments
is to allow the company to focus on different
markets more effectively. Management can track
the performance of each segment separately, see
which products or services are thriving, and make
better decisions for growth. Investors also benefit
from this breakdown because they can assess

which parts of the company are doing well and
which might need improvement.

The hotel has different nature of operation. Their
revenue and operating expenditure pattern is also
difference from analysis point of view. Accordingly,
overall result of the hotel is a composit progress
and success of different segments of the hotel. We
consider Room, F&B, Airport Lounge and Other as
different areas of segment to analyse segmental
performance.

The business segments are managed separately.
Operating results of the business segments are
regularly reviewed to make decisions about
resources allocation to the segments and assess
its periodic performance.

Revenue (Rs.) 425,741,747.00 410,038,148.00 279,314,567.00  101,696,249.00
Operating Expenses (Rs.) 272,474,719.00 385,504,860.00 150,173,761.00 50,145,171.00
Operating Profit (Rs.) 153,267,028.00 24,533,288.00 129,140,806.00 51,551,078.00
Margin % 36.00 5.98 46.23 50.69
Segmental Information 080/81

450,000,000.00

400,000,000.00

350,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

250,000,000.00

200,000,000.00

150,000,000.00

100,000,000.00 I

50,000,000.00

s

Room Sales

I Total Revenue

Fodd & Beverages

I Operating Expenses

Airport Lounge Others

Operating Profit
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Total Segmental Revenue

Room Sales
35%

Fodd &

Beverages
34%

Segment Revenue Analysis

Room Sales  dFodd & Beverages LiAirport Lounge & Others Total —
Others 5
Airport Lounge =
Fodd & Beverages =
Room Sales =

Segmental Operating Profit - 20000 40000 600.00  800.00 1,000.00 1,200.00 1,400.00

180/81 1179/80
Others

14%

Room Sales
43%

Segmental Information

450,000,000.00
400,000,000.00
350,000,000.00
300,000,000.00
250,000,000.00
200,000,000.00
150,000,000.00
100,000,000.00

50,000,000.00

i Room Sales i Fodd & Beverages  LiAirport Lounge & Others

S eg men t a I 0 p era ti n g E X p enses Room Sales Fodd & Beverages Airport Lounge Others

L Total Revenue ki Operating Expenses L Operating Profit

Room Sales
32%

Fodd &
Beverages
45%

i Room Sales i Fodd & Beverages  LiAirport Lounge & Others
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Value Added Statement

And Its Distribution p-

VALUE ADDED
Total Sales during the Year
Total Other income during the Year
Total Cost
Total Economic Value Added

DISTRIBUTIONS
To Employee
To Government
To Shareholders
Retained by the Company
Total Distribution

Value Added Distribution
080/81

ki To Employee
ki To Government
11 To Shareholders

M Retained by the Company

Value Added Distribution Comparision

———080/81 079/80 ———078/79
400,000,000.00
350,000,000.00 N
300,000,000.00 N
250,000,000.00 N
200,000,000.00 < \\
150,000,000.00 AN N~
100,000,000.00 N -
\ ——
50,000,000.00 —

To Employee To Government To Shareholders Retained by the
Company

080/81 079/80
1,216,790,710.72 1,211,087,667.70
80,996,946.43 127,093,626.52
(607,734,567.78) (601,026,170.89)
690,053,089.37 737,155,123.33
080/81 079/80
345,098,696.85 321,925,596.69
122,525,553.59 113,276,000.85
56,404,521.03 56,477,847.76
166,024,317.89 245,475,678.03
690,053,089.37 737,155,123.33

Value Added Distribution 079/80

L To Employee
ki To Government
L:To Shareholders

i Retained by the Company

Value Added Distribution

350,000,000.00 -
300,000000.00

250,000,000.00
200,000,000.00
150,000,000.00
100,000,000.00 ~ -
50,000,000.00

To To To Retained by the

Company

080/81 079/80 .078/79
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Human Capital b

Our Core Strength is our Staff Member

Human capital refers to the collective skills,
knowledge, experience, abilities, and attributes
possessed by individuals that contribute to their
economic productivity and potential. It includes
both innate qualities, such as cognitive abilities
and emotional intelligence, and acquired qualities,
such as education, training, and work experience.
Human capital is often considered a form of
intangible asset because it directly influences an
individual's capacity to generate economic value,
whether through employment, entrepreneurship,
or innovation.

Human capital is the most important component
of our sustainable hotel business. Since, hotel
industry is a service oriented business, it is very
important to have exceptionally tallented and
highly motivated professionals in the team.

Oriental Hotels Limited believe that our core
strength is our staff members. We consider our
most valuable asset is our employees.

Human capital can be developed and expanded
through investments in education, training,
health care, and ongoing skill development.
These investments, often referred to as "human

capital formation," have a direct impact on the
productivity and economic value that individuals
can generate over their working lives.

Human capital is crucial not only for individual
success but also for organizational effectiveness
and national economic progress. By enhancing
human capital, societies can increase their overall
economic prosperity and well-being

We perennially invest in our human resources
and ensuring their growth, be it remuneration,
learning opportunities or promotion. Radisson
Hotel Kathmandu is blessed with highly motivated,
skilled and smily faces individuals team. The hotel
is very much proud on its human capital, which is
a greatest asset of intellectual value.

We recognise that having an engaged workforce
is critical for us to deliver value. We continue to
prioritise the engagement of our people with
focus on two specific areas — keeping our promise
to our employees and making it safe to speak up.
We are commited to an inclusive workplace that
brings out the best in all of us. We conti nually
strive to make our operations more efficient, while
creating a respectful work environment for each



member of our team. We also cosider that there
should be work life balance of our entire work
force along with creating value for the company.

The hotel treat all the its human resource as a
family member, which drive the hotel to achieve
its objectives. The untiring effort of our human
resource is the key factor for our guest satisfaction.
We have considerable ability to attract, nurture

Total employees

Annual Report
2080-2081

and retain talent through good governance
structures that balance divergent interests of
team members. General Manager is playing as
the catalyst on team engagement of the Hotel.
Existence of comprehensive and updated human
resource policy in the company, the hotel is
determined to empower its employee and provide
ample opportunity for professional growth.

At the year end, the company has a total of 358 Employees. The level wise composition of total employee
is presented below:

No. of Staff No. of Staff
Staff Positi d Level
(080/81) (079/80)

Staff - Level 1
Staff - Level 2
Staff - Level 3
Staff - Level 4
Staff - Level 5
Staff - Level 6

Supervisor - Level 1
Supervisor - Level 2
Manager - Level 1
Manager - Level 4
Manager - Level 6
Total

Performance Appraisal

Performance appraisal is a systematic process
used by organizations to evaluate and assess
an employee’s job performance over a specific
period. It involves measuring an employee’s work
accomplishments, skills, and behavior against
pre-established criteria, such as job descriptions,
goals, and competencies.

The management team of the hotel regularly
conducts comprehensive appraisal system
which help identify and evaluate problems and
potentials embeded in human resources leading
to performance based rewards and recognition.

Our company believes that performance of human
resources has direct link to the success of the

34 50
22 12
27 18
108 104
34 40
33 33
19 19
18 18
51 49
11 11
1 1
358 355

Company. The success and financial performance
of a Company has a direct relation to the talents,
motivation and accomplishments of its people.

Through our continuous human resource
development and training programme, we ensure
our talent retention, career development and
career prograssion.

Our HR policies have been designed ensuring that
all our people get equal growth opportunities
irrespective of gender, religion, age, colour, race
or disability.

Compensation and Benefits

The hotel is very much proud on its human capital,
which is a greatest asset of intellectual value.
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Basic salary is the primary compensation to the
emplyee for their contribution. Apart from it, the
company also provides allowances, festival bonus,
medical insurance, provident fund, maternity
leave etc.

We spend a total of Rs. 350,269,785 on employee
as salaries, wages and other benefits.

The hotel offers its employees a complete lifestyle
with special attention to retirement plans after
a fulfilling career with the organization. Multiple
retirement benefit plans are in place to take care
of retiring employees.

Succession Plan

A succession plan is a proactive strategy used by
organizations to ensure that essential leadership
and key positions are continuously filled with
qualified and capable individuals. It involves
identifying high-potential employees who can be
developed to step into critical roles in the future,
ensuring smooth transitions during planned or
unexpected departures.

They make sure the business is prepared for all
contingencies by identifying and training high-
potential workers for advancement into key roles.
Unique Hotel and Resorts limited has practicing
as well.

A succession plan is also a strategic process that
organizations use to identify and develop internal
talent to fill key leadership and management
roles within the company when current leaders
or employees in those roles leave or retire. The
primary goal of a succession plan is to ensure a
smooth transition of leadership and to mitigate
the potential disruptions that can occur when key
personnel depart.

Key components of a succession plan typically
include:

Identification of Key Positions:
Identifying Successors:
Development and Training:
Monitoring Progress:

Emergency Succession Planning:
Communication and Transparency:

No v kAwn =

Evaluation and Feedback:

Succession planning is a critical aspect of talent
management and organizational continuity.
It helps organizations ensure that they have a
pipeline of capable leaders ready to step into key
roles when needed, reducing the risk associated
with leadership transitions and maintaining
stability and productivity within the organization.




We continuously monitors our team member
turnover ratio and seeks to address attrition
through practical initiatives that engage
team members. Our policy ensures that each
department is garlanced with competent staff and
always ready to assume higher responsibilities.

Team Members' Health and Safety

Health and safety are critical components of
human capital because they directly impact
the productivity, well-being, and long-term
value of employees within an organization.
When employees are healthy and safe, they are
more likely to perform effectively, contribute
to organizational goals, and remain engaged
in their work. By investing in health and safety
measures, organizations protect and enhance
their human capital, ensuring sustainable growth
and performance.

Health & Safety is mandatory for all the
organization, which requires commitment and
personal involvement of all levels of employees.
Accidents never happen with pre notice. Each
member of the company has obligation and ability
to prevent accidents. All of them are responsible
and accountable for understanding and complying
with all regulations, company requirements and
procedures relating to their job performance.

2080-2081

Radisson Hotel Kathmandu prioritise, foster and
promote a safe working environment for all
its team members. Effort are made to sensitize
employees to comply with international best
practices for occupational health and safety
through out the year.

A comprehensive health and safety policy
document ensure that the health and safety
concerns are prioritised and addressed in our
workplace. Regular drill and other safety programs
ensures previlance of uptimum concern about
team members health and safety. Further, to
ensure safely of our people, well trained security
personnel have been deployed and alarm systems
and CCTV cameras have been installed. Being an
industry to cater international community, our
effort will always be there to keep our human
resource and the guest safe and healthy. During
this financial year, there were no report on
accident and injury in our workplace.

Human Resources Accounting

Human Resource Accounting (HRA) is the process
of identifying, measuring, and reporting the value
of an organization’s human capital in financial
terms. It aims to quantify the economic value of
employees as organizational assets, similar to how
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other tangible assets (like machinery or buildings)  and strategic planning. HRA data can help identify
are accounted for on financial statements. the return on investment in human capital and
inform strategies for optimizing the workforce.
It's important to note that HRA has its challenges
and limitations, including subjectivity in assigning
values and the difficulty of measuring intangible
aspects of human capital. Additionally, HRA is
not a widely accepted accounting practice and
is not required for financial reporting in many
jurisdictions. We also do not have practice of
Human Resource Accounting. However, we are
trying to maintain some of its components.

While HRA is not as commonly practiced
as traditional financial accounting, it can
provide valuable insights for management and
decision-making. There are different methods
for conducting HRA, including historical cost,
replacement cost, and opportunity cost. Each
method has its own set of assumptions and
considerations. The calculated human resource
values can be used in decision-making processes
such as resource allocation, talent management,

Employee mix as per Gender

___

Male 80% 83%
Female 70 20% 60 16%
Total 358 355

Employee Mix as per Gender 080/81

Employee mix as per Permanency

___

Permanent 215 60% 63%
Contractual 143 40% 132 37%
Total 358 355



Employee Mix as per permanency 080/81

Employee mix as per Age Group

| 08081 079/80

18 — 30 Years
31 —40 Years
41 - 50 Years
51 -60 Years
Total

Employee Mix as per Age Group

51 -60 Years
14%

41 -50 Years

32%

Permanent

60%

18 — 30 Years
21%

31-40 Years
33%
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75 78
117 116
114 112
52 49
358 355

New Recruits during the Year Employee Left during the Year

080/81
079/80

71
75

42
46
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Corporate Social Responsibility p

Corporate Social Responsibility is a noble concept
that refers to a company's commitment to
operating in an ethical and sustainable manner
while considering the social and environmental
impacts of its activities. CSR involves businesses
taking responsibility for their actions and their
impact on society beyond just generating profits.

The aim of CSR is to create a positive impact on
society and the environment while also benefiting
the company's reputation, brand image, and
long-term sustainability. It is often seen as a way
for businesses to go beyond profit-making and
contribute to the well-being of the communities
they operate in and the world at large.

We believe that while we operate our business in
a particular society, our business has also some
responsibility towards that society. We assume
great empathy with the spread over community

Radisson Kathmandu is proud to celebrate
June Community Month 2024.

For our 5th CSR activity, we have
collaborated with White Moon Pads,

Birat Healthcare Industry to support the
Chhori Organization. Chhori, which means
"daughter” in Nepali, is a women-led
organization operating nationally. The
mission of Chhori is to improve conditions
in Nepal to ensure no one is discriminated
against based on their gender.

and happily accept the responsibility of being a
good citizen and supportive neighbour to all.

We initiate interdependent bonding between
hotel and the society to uplift and benefit people.
Radisson Hotel Kathmandu strongly advocates
community welfare with a sense of contributing
to society. Therefore, the hotel conducts CSR
activities every year mobilizing, engaging and
activating its resource as well as team.

Radisson Hotel Group has been celebrating the
month of June as Community Action Month by
finding ways to positively impact sustainable and
responsible business for people, the community,
and our planet.

June being our Community Action Month, we are
proud to share the activities that were dedicated
to doing responsible business and continuing to
contribute positively to our communities.

TEEJ is a three-day festival
characterized by numerous
rituals, such as a significant feast
known as Dar Khane Din, a day of
fasting, and religious observances
including Rishi Panchami.

Radisson Hotel Kathmandu
commemorated the occasion

on September 1st, focusing on
celebrating TEEJ with women, as
we embrace enjoyment in all our
endeavors.

Y -
@ Rediseny,
/A.
The Pad Project

In association with
‘2" White Moon Pads

for
Chhori Organization

@’r:



Annual Report
2080-2081

Rz ploop eSS
DONATION 3

Campaign

In Association With

o= Nepal Red Cross Society

GANABAHAL SUB CHAPTER

BE A HERO, DONATE BLOOD AND SAVE LIVES.
YOUR BLOOD DONATION TODAY CAN BE
SOMEONE'S LIFELINE TOMORROW

L 24 June, 2024

HR DEPARTMENT
RADISSON HOTEL KATHMANDU

With the assistance of the Nepal Red Cross Society, Radisson Hotel Kathmandu successfully carried out our
CSR activity of Blood Donation Program. We would like to express our appreciation to all the individuals who
generously donated blood during this event.

Radet'/)ébm

HOTEL KATHMANDU

N

; W I o =3
" comMuNITY : . “atu re

ACTION MONTH JUNE 2024 &1 z R :
Our Commitment to Bird Conservation

CSR INITIATIVE OF

RADISSON HOTEL KATHMANDU

-~ Rada}g}m

RANIBARI COMMUNITY FOREST

Beree A P Al A5 P -0

Radisson Hotel Kathmandu undertook an initiative to venture into the wild, where they fed the birds in the
Ranibari Community Forest, gaining valuable insights into the various species of birds present in the area.

Following Radisson Hotel
Kathmandu's First Activity for : s A
Community Action Month where we ¥ S o ‘
collected Supplies for Fresh Nepal R R
and handed it over to Ms. Dhana. : e e




ORIENTAL
Hotels Limited

At Radisson Hotel Group, we are continuing our efforts to connect
with social and environmental sustainability initiatives.

We prioritize community engagement through environmental
volunteering. Our teams contribute their time and energy to various
initiatives aimed at making a positive difference on the community
and the planet in local areas.

Radisson Hotel Kathmandu proudly taking initiatives for the planet
and the community celebrating JUNE COMMUNITY MONTH 2024 by
focusing on cleaning our surrounding for a cleaner place to live in for

our colleagues, guests and our community.
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Regd. with The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal : 56 ]
A member firm of

PYC & ASSOCIATES {_3_ ECOVIS®

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Shareholders of Oriental Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of M/s Oriental Hotels Limited, (“the Company”) which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as on 31* Ashadh, 2081 (15" July, 2024), the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as on 31 Ashadh, 2081 (15" July 2024), its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN’s
Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for the opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we dc not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

|
1 Informatien Technology General Controls. | Cur audit approach Regarding verification of
the information technology of the company
| is included. ) B
IT controls with respect to recording of # An understanding of the coding
transactions, generating various reports in system added by the company for
compliance with relevant Act/ laws/and various categories of customers.
guidelines is an important part of the process » Understanding the feeding of the data |
Such reporting is highly dependent on the in the system and going through the |
- = extraction of the financial information |
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effective working of the information systems and statements from the IT system
used, existing in the company;

» Reviewing the Report Generated by
We have considered this a key audit matter as the system on a sample basis. We also
any control lapses, validation failures, incorrect verified the income booking under
input data, and wrong extraction of Reviewing various revenue streams on test basis
the reports generated by the data may resultin with the system;
wrong reporting of data to the management, » we extended our testing to identify
shareholders, and regulators whether there had been unauthorized

or inappropriate access or changes
made to critical IT systems and related
data;

where automated procedures were
supported by systems with identified
deficiencies, we extended our
procedures to identify and test
alternative controls; and

where required, we performed a
greater level of testing to validate the
integrity and reliahility of associated
data and reporting.

Y

A

Other Information

The Company management and directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management report and other progress
reports but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial
Statements in accordance with NFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Organization’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

On the basis of our examination, and information provided to us we report that:

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 27/05/2081 (12/09/2024)

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which, to the best knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position as on 31 Ashadh, 2081(15" July 2024), and the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including Significant Accounting Policies applied by the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the company Act and are in agreement with the book of
accounts maintained by the Company including relevant records relating to preparation of the
aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and record of the Company.

To the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and so far, appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across cases where Board of
Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to
the accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company or acted
in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the Company.

UDIN No.: 240912CA00146B4rKy Partner

PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Hotels Limited
ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
LAZIMPAT, KATHMANDU
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at July 15, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081)
(Amount in NRs.)

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 3,895,265,642 3,951,178,420
Right-of use-assets 2.1(A) 362,700,842 395,572,495
Investment Property 2.1(B) 44,493,655 46,045,933
Capital Work-In-Progress 2.1 (C) 717,005,686 373,382,976
Intangible assets 2.2 370,662 773,151
Deferred tax assets 2.15 - -
Other Non-current assets 2.3 - -
Total Non- Current Assets 5,019,836,487 4,766,952,976
Current assets
Inventories 2.4 103,396,977 100,964,651
Employee Loans 2.5 2,055,066 1,792,109
Trade and others receivables 2.6 215,879,336 222,349,407
Cash and cash equivalents 2.7 320,307,368 433,339,837
Other current assets 2.3 153,423,278 174,263,335
Income Tax Assets 2.15.1 21,306,817 32,260,717
Total Current Assets 816,368,842 964,970,057
Total Assets 5,836,205,329 5,731,923,033
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 2.8 1,128,090,438 1,128,090,438
Reserve and Surplus 29 2,747,606,753 2,682,990,990
Total Equity 3,875,697,191 3,811,081,428
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 2.10 805,737,455 555,350,407
Trade payables 2.11 - -
Employee Benefits 2.12 24,397,107 45,069,686
Provisions 2.13 - -
Other non-current liabilities 2.14 445,487,542 449,468,678
Deferred tax liabilities 2.15.3 59,315,176 51,602,528
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,334,937,280 1,101,491,298
Current liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 2.10 217,696,087 380,229,674
Trade and others payables 2.11 233,935,788 235,040,562
Employee Benefits 2.12 2,798,565 3,048,748
Other current liabilities 2.14 154,892,306 179,227,492
Provisions 2.13 16,248,113 21,803,831
Income Tax Liabilities 2.15.2
Total current Liabilities 625,570,858 819,350,307
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,836,205,329 5,731,923,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 1 to 2.34
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Oriental Hotels Limited

As Per Our Report of Even Date
For PYC & Associates

Subhadra Shrestha
Chairman

Bidhata Shrestha
Joint Mamaging Director

Anil Das Shrestha
Managing Director

Lok Raj Dhungana
Financial Controller

Sunil Lal Shrestha Prakash Tiwari Rabindra Lal Shrestha Mishu Shrestha CA. Yagya Raj Bhatta
Directors Directors Directors Directors Partner

Chartered Accountants
Date: Bhadra 27, 2081 (September 12, 2024)

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
LAZIMPAT, KATHMANDU
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended July 15, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081)

(Amount in NRs.)

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)

Revenue From Operations 2.16 1,155,645,935 1,086,708,015
Other Income 2.17 61,144,776 124,379,653
Gross Revenue 1,216,790,711 1,211,087,668
EXPENSES

Cost of Food, Provision & Beverage consumed 2.18 141,205,146 168,460,826
Operating Supplies & Expenses 2.19 207,364,392 195,041,123
Employee Benefits Expense 2.20 350,269,785 305,135,453
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 21&2.2 108,704,128 102,979,975
Other Expenses 2.21 159,459,188 126,155,185
Total Expenses 967,002,638 897,772,562
Profit/(Loss) from operations 249,788,073 313,315,105
Finance Cost 2.22 99,705,842 111,369,036
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional items and tax 150,082,231 201,946,069
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 150,082,231 201,946,069
Income Tax Expense:

- Current Tax 2.15 18,380,637 -
- Deferred Tax 2.15 7,712,648 41,023,633
"Profit/(Loss) from continuing Operations" 123,988,945 160,922,436
Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations - -
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 123,988,945 160,922,436

Other Comprehensive Income:

Change in fair value of Land & Building - 1,685,622,864
Measurements of defined benefit Liability/Asset - -
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income = -

Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax - 1,685,622,864
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 123,988,945 1,846,545,300
Earning per Equity share 2.23

Basic (NRs.) 10.99 14.27
Diluted (NRs.) 10.99 14.27
Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share

Basic 11,280,904 11,280,904
Diluted 11,280,904 11,280,904

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 2.34
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Oriental Hotels Limited

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Lok Raj Dhungana Bidhata Shrestha Anil Das Shrestha Subhadra Shrestha For PYC & A iat

Financial Controller Joint Mamaging Director Managing Director Chairman or ssociates

Sunil Lal Shrestha Prakash Tiwari Rabindra Lal Shrestha Mishu Shrestha ) CAYagya Ra]Bhatta :
Directors Directors Directors Directors Partner

Chartered Accountants
Date: Bhadra 27, 2081 (September 12, 2024)

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal



Hotels Limited

ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
LAZIMPAT, KATHMANDU
STAEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended July 15, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081)

(Amount in NRs.)

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the Year
Adjustment for:

Depreciation/amortisation on PPE, Investment Property & Intangible Assets

Loss/ (gain) on sale of Property, plant and equipment
Waiver of Frozen Interest

Increase / Decrease in Trade receivables

Increase / Decrease in Employee Loan

Increase / Decrease in Other Current Assets

Increase / Decrease in Inventories

Increase / Decrease in Trade payables
Increase/Decrease in Provisions

Increase/Decrease in Current Loan & Borrowings
Increase/Decrease in Non- Current Employee Benefits
Increase/Decrease in Current Employee Benefits
Increase / Decrease in other Liabilities

Cash generated from Operations

Finance Cost

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment (including CWIP)
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (B)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Finance Cost paid

Increased/(Decreased) in non- current borrowings
Increased/(Decreased) in non- current borrowings
Cash Dividend (Including Tax)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C )

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end

21&22
2.18

2.6
2.5
23
24
211
2.13
2.1
2.12
2.12
2.14

2.22
2.16

2.1

2.22

2.10

2.10
2.9

2.7
2.7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1-2.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Oriental Hotels Limited

Bidhata Shrestha
Joint Mamaging Director

Lok Raj Dhungana
Financial Controller

Sunil Lal Shrestha Prakash Tiwari
Directors Directors Directors

Date: Bhadra 27, 2081 (September 12, 2024)
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Anil Das Shrestha
Managing Director

Rabindra Lal Shrestha

Subhadra Shrestha

Chairman

Mishu Shrestha
Directors

150,082,231

108,704,128

6,470,071
(262,956)
20,840,057
(2,432,326)
(1,104,773)
(5,555,719)
(158,979,816)
(20,672,579)
(250,183)
(31,528,740)
65,309,394
99,705,842
(7,426,738)
157,588,498

(298,659,078)
(298,659,078)

(159,421,985)
357,400,263
(110,566,986)
(59,373,182)
28,038,110
(113,032,469)
433,339,837
320,307,368

201,946,069

102,979,975
67,028,166
(12,619,387)
477,523
(118,081,405)
(7,381,227)
66,699,564
21,803,831
(69,540,183)
(39,563,391)
150,599
12,496,959
226,397,094
111,369,036
(7,413,945)
330,352,185.07

(157,897,313)
(157,897,313)

(119,476,712)
171,500,424
(213,007,175)
(160,983,462)
11,471,409
421,868,428
433,339,837

As Per Our Report of Even Date
For PYC & Associates

CA. Yagya Raj Bhatta
Partner
Chartered Accountants



ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 15, 2024 (ASHAD 31, 2081)

SHARE Total equity
Reserve & Surplus
CAPITAL attributable
. Secur|ty Retained
LG Premium earnings Reserve*
Reserve & Company

Balance as of July 16, 2022 1,128,090,438 8,363,284 (8,141,134)
Changes in equity for the year ended July 16, 2023

Revaluation for the year

Issue of Bonus Share (Dividend) - - -
Cash dividend including Tax on bonus share - - -
Adjustment of Financial Lease -
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 160,922,436
Other Comprehensive income - - -
Balance as of July 16, 2023 1,128,090,438 8,363,284 152,781,302
Balance as of July 16, 2023 1,128,090,438 8,363,284 152,781,302
Changes in equity for the year ended July 15, 2024

Profit for the year - - 123,988,945
Revaluation for the year - - -
Other Comprehensive income - - -
Issue of Bonus Share (Dividend) - - -
Cash dividend including Tax on bonus share - - (59,373,182)
Balance as of July 15, 2024 1,128,090,438 8,363,284 217,397,065

* Nature of Revaluation Reserve on transition date:

2080-2081

to equity

Revaluation holders of the

836,223,540 1,964,536,128

1,685,622,864 1,685,622,864

- 160,922,436

2,521,846,404 3,811,081,428
2,521,846,404 3,811,081,428

- 123,988,945

- (59,373,182)
2,521,846,404 3,875,697,191

Revaluation reserve was created under NFRS on upward revaluation of land and building i.e. fair value of freehold land and
building are determined by external valuation experts with appropriate professional qualification and international accreditation.
The fair value measurement for all the investment properties are categorized as a level 3 based on the observability of the inputs

used to in the valuation technique.

The company used discounted cash flow method which considers the present value of net cash inflows to be generated by the
property, considering expected rental growth rate, vacant periods and occupancy rates. The discount rate considered, amongst

other factors, the quality of the property and its location, the tenancy credit quality.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1-2.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Oriental Hotels Limited

Lok Raj Dhungana Bidhata Shrestha Anil Das Shrestha Subhadra Shrestha

Financial Controller Joint Mamaging Director Managing Director Chairman

Sunil Lal Shrestha Prakash Tiwari Rabindra Lal Shrestha Mishu Shrestha
Directors Directors Directors Directors

Date: Bhadra 27, 2081 (September 12, 2024)
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

As Per Our Report of Even Date
For PYC & Associates

CA. Yagya Raj Bhatta
Partner
Chartered Accountants
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED

Notes 2.1(A) Right-of- use of Assets
Particulars

Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023

Additions

Deletions

Gross Carrying Value as of July 15, 2024

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2023
Depreciation

Deduction

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 15, 2024
Net Carrying Value as of July 15, 2024

Annual Report m
2080-2081

Lease asset
444,135,236

444,135,236

48,562,741
32,871,653
81,434,394
362,700,842

Particulars Lease asset

Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2022
Additions
Deletions

Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2022
Depreciation

Deduction

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2023
Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023

427,749,373
16,385,863

444,135,236

24,281,371
24,281,371
48,562,741
395,572,495




ORIENTAL
Fovas Lo
ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED

Notes 2.14.1 Lease liability

Opening 16 july 2023 460,150,861
Add: Addition -
Add: Interest Expense 51,952,643
Less: Payment 55,933,779
Closing liability 15, july 2024 456,169,726
Current 10,682,184
non current 445,487,542
Opening 16 july 2022 438,502,111
Add: Addition 16,385,863
Add: Interest Expense 49,932,579
Less: Payment 44,669,691
Closing liability 16 july 2023 460,150,861
Current 10,682,184
non current 449,468,678

"Note 3. 11% Incremental cost of borrowing is used for the measurement of lease liability.
Lease liability is seggregated into current & non-current as per NFRS 16. Any change in lease contract will subject to change the
above measurement in future."
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2.1 (B): Investment Property

Annual Report

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the Year ended July 15, 2024

Particulars Land
Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023 22,866,361
Additions -
Deletions -
Gross Carrying Value as of July 15, 2024 22,866,361

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2023 -
Depreciation

Deduction -
Accumulated Depreciation as of July 15, 2024

Net Carrying Value as of July 15, 2024 22,866,361

Building
63,413,134

63,413,134

40,233,562
1,552,278

41,785,840
21,627,294

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the Year ended July 16, 2023

Particulars Land
Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2022 22,866,361
Additions -
Deletions -
Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023 22,866,361

Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2022 -
Depreciation

Deduction -
Accumulated Depreciation as of July 16, 2023 -
Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023 22,866,361

Net Book value

Building
63,413,134

63,413,134

38,674,298

1,559,263
40,233,562
23,179,573

2080 2001 LI

Total
86,279,495

86,279,495
40,233,562
1,552,278
41,785,840
44,493,655

Total
86,279,495

86,279,495

38,674,298

1,559,263
40,233,562
46,045,933

On July 15, 2024 | On July 16, 2023

Investment Properties

Fair Value

Measurement of fair value on reporting date

44,493,655
46,718,338

46,045,933
48,348,230

The Fair values of investment properties are determined by external valuation experts with appropriate professional qualification and
international accreditation. The fair value measurement for all the investment properties are categorized as a level 3 based on the

observability of the inputs used to in the valuation technique.

The company used discounted cash flow method which considers the present value of net cash inflows to be generated by the
property, considering expected rental growth rate, vacant periods and occupancy rates. The discount rate considered, amongst other

factors, the quality of the property and its location, the tenancy credit quality.
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2.1 (C): Capital Work In Progress

Capital work in progress & pre operative expenditure during construction period (pending allocation) relating to property, plant &

equipment

Amount (In Rs.)
Balance as at 16 July, 2023 373,382,976
Balance as at 15 July, 2024 717,005,686

Note 2.2: Intangible Assets
Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the Year ended July 15, 2024

Particulars Software Total
Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023 6,793,765 6,793,765
Additions - -
Deletions - -
Gross Carrying Value as of July 15,2024 6,793,765 6,793,765
Accumulated Amortization as of July 16, 2023 6,020,613 6,020,613
Amortization expense 402,490 402,490
Deletion - -
Accumulated Amortization as of July 15, 2024 6,423,103 6,423,103
Carrying Value as of July 16, 2024 370,662 370,662

Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the Year ended July 16, 2023

Particulars Software Total

Gross Carrying Value as of July 16, 2022 6,793,765 6,793,765
Additions -

Deletions B N
Gross Carrying Value as of July 16,2023 6,793,765 6,793,765
Accumulated Amortization as of July 16, 2022 5,618,124 5,618,124
Amortization expense 402,490 402,490
Deletion - -
Accumulated Amortization as of July 16, 2023 6,020,613 6,020,613

Carrying Value as of July 16, 2023 773,151 773,151
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 2.3: OTHER ASSETS
As at As at

July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023

Non-Current - -

Particulars

TOTAL - -
Current
Margin Money Deposits with Banks 4,152,264 3,545,910
Advances to suppliers 64,174,835 136,384,057
Prepaid expenses 68,093,706 20,473,110
Security Deposits 3,247,674 3,067,258
Deposits for Appeal 13,754,800 10,793,000
TOTAL 153,423,278 174,263,335
NOTE 2.4: INVENTORIES
Particulars Asat Asat
July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023
Provisions, Beverage & Others 20,380,223 19,228,530
Linen & Uniform 57,084,267 53,145,761
Crockery, Cultery etc. 22,572,460 25,448,940
Stores and spares 3,360,027 3,141,421
TOTAL 103,396,977 100,964,651
NOTE 2.5: EMPLOYEE LOANS
. As at As at
particulars July15,2024 | July 16,2023

Current

Loans and advances to employees 2,055,066 1,792,109

TOTAL 2,055,066 1,792,109
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NOTE 2.6: TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
As at As at
July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023

Particulars

Current

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months 209,252,699 216,722,597

Other Trade receivables 6,626,637 5,626,811

Considered Doubtful

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months 8,902,457 9,426,714

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts (8,902,457) (9,426,714)
TOTAL 215,879,336 222,349,407

(a) The fair values of the above financial assets are not materially different to their carrying amounts.
(b) Trade receivables Includes receivables from Related Parties.

(c) Trade receivables are non- interest bearing and generally collected within due period

NOTE 2.7: CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
Particulars
July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023
Balance with Banks
- In Current Accounts 53,684,451 47,652,449
- In Fixed Deposit Accounts 262,950,000 380,450,000
Cash in hand 3,672,917 5,237,388

TOTAL 320,307,368 433,339,837
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NOTE 2.7.1 Current Account

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Nabil-Fx Usd A/C-0204217033701 8,028,163 21,515,214
NCC Bank Ltd-493/028451 - 1,618,651
Nepal Bank USD-0217-11-0003797 38,851 2,386,691
GLOBAL IME BANK NPR-30101010002989 1,930,529 15,486
Prabhu Bank Ltd. 98,037 2,126,912
Nepal Bank Ltd-CA-0217-11-2783 59,260 59,260
Everest Bank Ltd-00200105000729 = 108,532
Sanima Bank Ltd.- 909010020000034 4,247,029 6,127,455
Nepal Bank Ltd NR-2-11-20536 12,841,502 8,369,263
Prabhu Bank Ltd. USD A/C 001 01061 951,105 123,037
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. CA-17725240000863 169,021 1,867,421
Rastriya Banijya Bank-CA-62349 143,571 143,571
Nabil Bank Nrs-Ca-201017029101 23,801,849 =
BOK-(USD)-010000003621 922,432 242,281
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.-CA-NRs.-2138100 229,136 1,210,170
HIMALAYAN BANK LTD NRS-01909765700018 215,808 1,736,957
HIMALAYAN BANK LTD USD-01909765700029 6,609 =
Nabil Bank Ltd.-TIA_010107500721 1,550 1,550

TOTAL 53,684,451 47,652,449

NOTE 2.7.2 Cash

. As at As at
Particulars
July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023
Main Cash 2,573,028 4,901,002
Float A/C - Petty Cash 740,244 132,000
Daily Cash Collection Control 359,645 204,386
TOTAL 3,672,917 5,237,388
NOTE 2.8: EQUITY
As at As at
Particulars
July 15, 2024 | July 16, 2023
AUTHORISED
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares(Previous year 1,50,00,000) of Rs.100/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

PAID UP

11,280,904 Equity Shares (Previous year 11,280,904) of Rs.100/- each (Including

o Sl e ol (i 1,128,090,438 1,128,090,438

1,128,090,438 1,128,090,438
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Note No. 2.8 (i)

Reconciliation of equity shares at beginning and at the end of the year

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 11,280,904 11,280,904
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Add: Bonus Shares during the year - -
Number of shares at the end of the year 11,280,904 11,280,904

Note No. 2.8 (ii)

Details of Shareholdings more than 1%:
As at July 15, 2024
% of shareholding

Name of the shareholder

Number of Shares

Ms. Sarswoti Devi Shrestha 3,836,836 34.01%
Ms. Subhadra Shrestha 2,249,126 19.94%
Mr. Anil Das Shrestha 1,523,450 13.50%
Ms. Bilasha Shrestha 145,298 1.29%
Total 7,754,709 68.74%

NOTE 2.9: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Securities premium reserve 8,363,284 8,363,284
Retained earnings 217,733,515 153,117,751
Other Comprehensive Income 2,521,509,955 2,521,509,955
Total reserves and surplus 2,747,606,753 2,682,990,990

(i) Securities premium reserve

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
Opening balance 8,363,284 8,363,284
Premiun on issue of forfeited equity shares - -
Transaction cost arising on shares issues, net of taxes - -
Closing Balance 8,363,284 8,363,284

(ii) Retained earnings

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Opening balance 153,117,751 (7,804,685)
Add: profit for the year/Period 123,988,945 160,922,436
Less: Issue of Bonus Share (Dividend) - -
Less: Cash Dividend including Tax (59,373,182) -
Closing Balance 217,733,515 153,117,751

The board has recommended 5% Bonus Share and applicable Tax for Bonus Share. This Proposal of Board of Director is subject to
recetification by the Annual General Meeting of the Share Holder.
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(iii) Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings:

Opening balance

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax

Income tax relating to components of OCI
Change in fair value of Land & Building

Closing Balance

NOTE 2.10: LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Non-Current (Referred Note no. 2.29)
Secured

Term Loan Renovation

Consortium Term Loan For New Wings | & Il
Term Loan Block-llI

Term Loan RP Il

Less: Due within next twelve month
Total
Unsecured
TOTAL
Current
Bridge Gap Loan
Working Capital Loan Nepal Bank
Working Capital Loan Nabil Bank
Secured (Referred Note No. 2.29)

TOTAL

As at
July 15, 2024

2,521,509,955

2,521,509,955

As at
July 15, 2024

627,510,739
265,739,931
893,250,670

87,513,214
805,737,455

805,737,455

19,513,214
52,669,658
58,000,000
87,513,214
217,696,087

1,023,433,542

(a) The fair values of the above financial liabilities are adjusted as per NAS 23, IFRS 9 and NFRS 13.
(b) Consortium, Term Loans and working capital loans are secured against mortgage of immovable properties (current and future)

and hypothication of current assets of the Company.

NOTE 2.11: TRADE AND OTHERS PAYABLES

Non-Current

Current:
Sundry Creditors
TDS Payable
VAT Payable
TOTAL

(a) The fair values of the above financial liabilities are equal to their carrying amounts.

(b) Trade payables Includes payable to Related Parties.

As at
July 15, 2024

199,549,294
34,055,017
331,477
233,935,788

20802001 LI

As at
July 16, 2023

835,887,090

1,685,622,864
2,521,509,955

As at
July 16, 2023

20,060,747
30,006,238
343,410,755
252,939,651
646,417,392
91,066,986
555,350,407

555,350,407

102,701,445
52,685,335
133,775,908
91,066,986
380,229,674

935,580,080

As at
July 16, 2023

197,928,932
27,442,082
9,669,548
235,040,562
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NOTE 2.12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Non-Current (Referred Note no. 2.24)

Gratuity (Unfunded) 711,093 23,775,781
Leave Encashment 23,686,014 21,293,905
TOTAL 24,397,107 45,069,686

Current (Referred Note no. 2.24)
Gratuity (Unfunded)

Leave Encashment 2,798,565 3,048,748
2,798,565 3,048,748
TOTAL 27,195,672 48,118,434

NOTE 2.13: PROVISIONS

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Non-Current - -

Current
Provision for Employees Bonus 15,008,223 20,194,607
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility 1,239,889 1,609,224
16,248,113 21,803,831
TOTAL 16,248,113 21,803,831

NOTE 2.14: OTHER LIABILITIES
As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
Non- Current

Lease liability 445,487,542 449,468,678
445,487,542 449,468,678

Current
Advances from Trade Receivables 20,334,253 15,318,518
Interest Payable - 36,240,226
Lease liability 10,682,184 10,682,184
Other Liabilities 123,875,869 116,986,564
154,892,306 179,227,492

TOTAL 600,379,848 628,696,170
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NOTE 2.15: INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense in the statement of profit or loss comprises:

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Current taxes 18,380,637 -
Deferred taxes 7,712,648 41,023,633
Deferred taxes related to Other Comprehensive income - -
Income tax expense 26,093,286 41,023,633

Entire deferred income tax for the year ended July 15, 2024 and July 16, 2023 relates to origination and reversal of temporary
differences.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income
before income taxes is summarized below:

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Profit before income taxes 150,082,231 201,946,069
Enacted tax rate of the Company 21.25% 21.25%
Computed expected tax expense 31,892,474 42,913,540
Effect of non- deductable 22,846,791 3,170,882
Effect of deductable expenses (36,358,628) (46,084,422)
Tax due to temporary difference 7,712,648 41,023,633
Income tax expense 26,093,286 41,023,633

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of July 15, 2024 and July 16, 2023 :

. As at | As at
Particulars
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
Income tax assets 2.15.1 452,504,861 445,078,123
Income tax liabilities 2.15.1 431,198,043 412,817,406
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 21,306,817 32,260,717

NOTE 2.15.1 Income Tax Assets

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Advance Tax FY 068-069 33,547,166 33,547,166
Advance Tax FY 069-070 34,439,040 34,439,040
Advance Tax FY 071-072 59,609,350 59,609,350
Advance Tax FY 072-073 30,694,851 30,694,851
Advance Tax FY 073-074 67,903,840 67,903,840
Advance Tax FY 074-075 83,298,979 83,298,979
Advance Tax FY 075-076 81,428,096 81,428,096
Advance Tax FY 076-077 31,495,458 31,495,458
Advance Tax FY 077-078 5,209,873 5,209,873
Advance Tax FY 078-079 10,037,525 10,037,525
Advance Tax FY 079-080 7,413,945 7,413,945
T.D.S.Recoverable (FY 2080/081) 7,426,738 -

TOTAL 452,504,861 445,078,123
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NOTE 2.15.2 Income Tax Liabilities

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Provision for Income Tax 2068/069 33,470,570 33,470,570
Provision for Income Tax 2069/070 34,178,243 34,178,243
Provision for Income Tax 2071/072 59,609,350 59,609,350
Provision for Income Tax 2072/073 30,694,851 30,694,851
Provision for Income Tax 2073/074 67,143,235 67,143,235
Provision for Income Tax 2074/075 80,998,330 80,998,330
Provision for Income Tax 2075/076 87,399,493 87,399,493
Provision for Income Tax 2076/077 19,323,334 19,323,334
Provision for Income Tax 2080/081 18,380,637 -

Total 431,198,043 412,817,406

The gross movement in the income tax assets/ (Liabilities):

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Net Income tax assets/ (Liability) at the beginning 32,260,717 24,846,772
Income tax Paid (including TDS) 7,426,738 7,413,945
Current income tax expense (18,380,637) -
Net current income tax Assets/(liability) at the end 21,306,817 32,260,717

NOTE 2.15.3 Deffered Tax Liabilities

The tax effect of Significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

Doubtful debts 1,891,772 2,003,177
Leave Encashment 5,627,973 5,172,814
Gratuity 151,107 5,052,353
Lease Liability 19,862,138 6,278,155
Tax Losses - 21,544,224

27,532,990 40,050,722

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant and Equipment 86,848,166 91,653,250
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - -

86,848,166 91,653,250

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) 59,315,176 51,602,528
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 2.16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Rooms 425,741,747 368,465,185
Food and Beverages 443,276,780 462,455,789
Banquet hall Rental 13,502,171 13,955,683
Business Center 73,394 81,939
Spa Revenue 12,259,270 16,938,100
Laundry Revenue 7,494,089 7,913,126
Telephone 41,008 114,931
Health Club 13,382,399 14,187,117
Fitness 2,337,478 3,384,021
Executive Lounge 232,573,765 195,505,964
Miscellaneous Revenue 4,963,835 3,706,161

TOTAL 1,155,645,935 1,086,708,015

NOTE 2.17: OTHER INCOME

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Rental Income 6,863,296 4,527,068
Service Charges - 11,199,675
Income from Foreign Exchange 419,739 2,495,705
Interest Income 26,159,030 33,045,799
Insurance Claim Received 354,400 1,100,028
Waiver of Frozen Interest - 67,028,166
Other Miscellaneous Income 27,348,311 4,983,213

TOTAL 61,144,776 124,379,653

NOTE 2.18: CONSUMPTION OF FOOD, PROVISION AND BEVERAGE

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Food Cost 125,369,243 148,910,534
Beverages Cost 9,472,510 10,910,870
Tabacco Cost 233,759 164,374
Consultancy Cost of SPA (Revenue sharing) 6,129,633 8,475,048

TOTAL 141,205,146 168,460,826
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NOTE 2.19: OPERATING SUPPLIES & EXPENSES

As at
July 15, 2024

As at

Guest Supplies 9,084,938
Guest Amenities 2,795,372
Cleaning Supplies 5,435,854
News paper and books supplies 308,425
Flower and decoration 1,033,603
Kitchen fuel 3,100,290
Paper and Kitchen Supplies 6,310,577
Laundry Supplies 3,001,960
Horticulture Expenses 101,944
Banquet and Audio Visual Expenses 27,599,721
Executive Lounge Supplies 46,827,371
Linen, Uniform and Curtains 4,503,612
Crockeries and Cutleries 2,162,862
Communication Expenses 2,436,152
Other Supplies 1,619,775
Heat, Light and Power 59,586,379
Property Operation & Maintenance 31,455,559

TOTAL 207,364,392

NOTE 2.20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

As at
July 15, 2024

Salaries, Wages and Allowances 224,589,484
Company's Contribution to Provident Fund (SSF) 8,599,339
Company's Contribution to Gratuity (SSF) 7,163,250
Insurance (SSF) 1,436,090
Long Service Award 2,312,500
Motivational Allowance 31,260,322
Gratuity Expenses 4,765,289
Leave Encashment 3,469,785
Staff Duty Meal 30,653,598
Director's Remuneration 21,011,906
Employees Bonus 15,008,223

TOTAL 350,269,785

July 16, 2023
8,682,991
3,644,787
7,642,877

109,068
780,960
3,149,040
6,674,215
2,725,019
96,550
25,639,124
34,949,801
10,765,799
3,927,090
2,461,749
181,036
56,851,094
26,759,923
195,041,123

As at
July 16, 2023
205,938,027
8,460,117
7,047,278
1,412,840

7,206,032
5,402,346
28,462,800
21,011,406
20,194,607
305,135,453
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NOTE 2.21: OTHER EXPENSES

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Rent Expenses 24,429,170 23,237,941
License and Taxes 4,276,397 3,983,198
Insurances 10,090,981 7,662,497
Printing and Stationery 2,656,527 2,613,691
Reservation Expenses 15,718,887 189,657
Security Expenses 15,049,435 11,388,794
Books and Periodicals 64,806 181,100
Sports & Walefare Expenses 502,287 608,556
Membership fee 561,534 481,212
Commission Expenses:

- Credit Card 8,953,596 9,359,371
- Others 14,513,688 12,685,314
Auditors' Remuneration 1,007,119 1,110,851
Share Expenses:

- Management Fee 250,000 150,000
- Other Expenses 364,657 452,955
Training and Development Expenses 379,304 237,943
AGM Expenses 1,084,546 282,355
Foreign Exchange loss 93,817
Transportation Expenses 8,003,425 7,255,651
Travelling Expenses 1,055,906 2,737,343
Professional & Consultance Fee 15,679,480 11,805,218
Meeting Fee:

- Board Meeting 588,825 495,060
- Audit Committee 120,000 64,000
Legal Expenses 2,468,508 2,331,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,063,397 2,265,895
Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 523,553 657,885
Sales Promotion Expenses 6,876,859 5,486,730
Management Fee:

- Radisson Royalty fee 14,049,478 12,159,351
- Radisson Marketing fee 4,257,417 3,684,652
Postage & Courier Expenses 23,508 8,000
Bad Debt Written off 1,606,008 875,922
Corporate Social Responsibility 1,239,889 1,609,224

TOTAL 159,459,188 126,155,185
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NOTE 2.21.4 Auditor’s Remunerations
As at As at

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Payments to auditor comprises:

i) Statutory Audit 399,300 399,300
ii) Tax Audit 100,000 100,000
iii) Internal Audit 500,000 500,000
iv) Other Expenses 7,819 111,551

TOTAL 1,007,119 1,110,851

NOTE 2.22: FINANCE COST

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Interest on loan 43,480,618 57,924,667
Bank Charges 1,671,077 1,556,223
Loan Management fee 2,601,504 1,955,568
Interest Expense (Lease) 2.14.1 51,952,643 49,932,579

TOTAL 99,705,842 111,369,036

Note 2.23: Earning Per Share

Year ended
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

Profit after Tax (Before other Comprehensive Income) 123,988,945 160,922,436
Basic Earnings per equity share-Weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding 11,280,904 11,280,904
Diluted Earnings per equity share-Weighted average number of equity shares and

common equivalent shares outstanding 11,280,904 11,280,904
Basic (NRs.) 10.99 14.27

Diluted (NRs.) 10.99 14.27
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Note: 2.24 Gratuity and Leave Benefits

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans, leave benefits and the amounts recognized in the Company's
financial statements as at July 15, 2024 and July 16, 2023.

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023

(Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31,2080) (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)

Change in benefit obligations

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation - - 24,424,976 21,553,219
Transfer in/(out) obligation - - - -
Current service cost - - 1,530,036 1,476,357
Interest cost - - 2,371,989 2,231,672

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial

assumptions

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic

assumption

Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustments - - (432,240) 1,694,317

Past service cost o S - -

Loss (gain) on curtailments = = - -
Liabilities extinguished on settlements 5 o - -

Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the
nature of purchase

Exchange differences on foreign plans = = = °
Benefits paid - - (1,410,182) (2,612,916)
Closing defined benefit obligation = - 26,484,579 24,342,649
Change in plan assets

Opening value of plan assets - - - -
Transfer in/(out) plan assets - = = =
Interest Income = = = =

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in
interest income

Assets distributed on settlements S o - _
Contributions by employer = = - -

Assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of
purchase

Exchange differences on foreign plans - - - -
Benefit Paid - - - -
Closing Value of plan assets - - - -
Funded Status of the Plan

Present value of unfunded obligations = = 26,484,579 24,342,649
Present value of funded obligations - - - -
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Net Liability (Assets) - - 26,484,579 24,342,649

* As per the scheme document, funding is necessary. However, company has confirmed that the plan is unfunded and hence we
have no planned assets in relation to liabilities.

The Actuarial Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for the year ended 15t July 2024 of Gratuity is in NPR Nil because company is
contributing in SSF therefore no need to calculating Actuarial valuation of Gratuity and Leave Benefits is in NPR 26,484,579.
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Amount for the year ended July 15, 2024 and year ended July 16, 2023 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under

employee benefit expenses
As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

1,530,036 1,476,357

Current service cost

Past service cost and Loss/(gain) on curtailment and
settlement

Net interest cost = - 2,371,989 2,231,672

Net value of remeasurements on the obligation and
plan assets

Net Actuarial Loss/(Gain) - - (432,240) 1,694,317
Past service laibility = - - -

Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expenses' = = 3,469,785 5,402,346

Amount for the year ended July 15, 2024 and July 16, 2023 recognized in statement of accumulated other comprehensive income

Gratuity Leave Benefits
As at As at

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

- - (18,556,412) (20,250,729)

Remeasurements of the the net defined benefit
liability/(assets)

Opening Accumulated other Comprehensive income
(expenses)
Net Actuarial (gains)/losses for the current period = - (432,240) 1,694,317

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(assets)

Amounts recognized in accumulated Other - - (18,988,652) (18,556,412)
Comprehensive Income (Expenses)

As at As at
July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations
for the current period:

(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions = = = =
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumption = = = =
(Gain)/loss from experience adjustment = - (432,240) 1,694,317

Total = = (432,240) 1,694,317
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Principle actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at July 15, 2024, July 16 2023, July 16 2022, July 15

2021 and July 15, 2020 are set out below:

Leave Benefits

July 16,2023 | July 16, 2022 July 15, 2021 July 15, 2020
(Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 32, 2079) | (Ashad 31, 2078) | (Ashad 31, 2077)

July 15, 2024
(Ashad 31, 2081)

Discount Rate 10%
Salary Growth Rate 5%
Expected Rate of Return 0%

Withdrawal Rates
At younger ages 10%
Reducing to % at older ages 2%

Expected Return on Plan assets

Leave Availment Rate 5%

10% 9%
5% 5%
0% 0%

10% 10%
2% 2%
5% 5%

9%
5%
0%

10%
2%

5%

9%
5%
0%

10%
2%

5%

Principle actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended July 15, 2024 and July 16, 2023 are

set out below:

Discount Rate
Salary Growth Rate
Withdrawal Rate
At younger age

Reducing to % at older age

Expected Return on Plan assets

Leave Availment Rate

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

10%
5%

10%
2%

N.A.
0%

10%
5%
0%
10%
2%

N.A.
0%
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Expected cashflows based on past service liability dated on 15th July 2024

Particulars Cashflows Distribution Cashflows Distribution
NRs. % NRs. %

Year

2025 = = 2,798,565 9%

2026 = = 3,208,706 10%

2027 = = 3,515,059 11%

2028 = = 2,742,562 9%

2029 = = 2,854,330 9%
2030-2034 = = 17,115,281 53%

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.

Bifurcation of current and non-current liability

Leave Benefits

As at
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 32, 2079) | (Ashad 31, 2078) | (Ashad 31, 2077)
Current Liability 2,798,565 3,048,748 2,898,149 2,091,639 2,452,107
Non-current Liability 23,686,014 21,293,905 18,655,070 20,671,716 23,882,020
Net Liability 26,484,579 24,342,653 21,553,219 22,763,355 26,334,127

Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

Gratuity Leave Benefits

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

Net opening provision in books of accounts 24,424,976 21,553,219
Employee Benefit Expenses as per annexure - - 3,469,785 5,402,346
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - -
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income o o

- - 27,894,761 26,955,565
Benefits paid by the Company - - -11,795,615 -2,530,589

Contributions to plan assets - o - -
Closing provision in books of accounts = = 16,099,146 24,424,976
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Composition of the plan assets

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080) | (Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080)

Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
State Government Securities 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
High quality corporate bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Equity shares of listed companies 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Property 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Policy of insurance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Balance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other Investments 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Leave Benefits

Sensitivity to key assumptions July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)

[]:10) Changes in DBO [0]:10) Changes in DBO
NRs. % NRs. %

Discount rate varied by 50 bps

50 bps 25,687,503 -3.01% 20,906,357 -3%
50 bps 27,326,562 3.18% 22,237,447 3%
Salary growth rate varied by 50 bps

50 bps 27,363,525 3.32% 22,274,196 3%
50 bps 25,646,735 -3.16% 20,867,294 -3%

A description of methods used for sensitivity analysis and its Limitations:
Sensitivity analysis is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other parameters unchanged.
Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters.

Hence, the results may vary if two or more variables are changed simultaneously. The method used does not indicate anything
about the likelihood of change in any parameter and the extent of the change if any.
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NOTE 2.25: Contingent Liabilities

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080

Bank Guarantee & LC Commitment 62,781,891 54,346,359
Appeal Against Income tax assessment 42,830,873 31,899,483
Total 105,612,763 86,245,841

The company has submitted Tax & VAT Return on timely basis; however the tax assessment from Large Tax Office has been
completed till financial year 2079/080. The Hotel has received final assessment order of F/Y 2079/80 on 13th Shrawan 2081.
The company has proceeded for Administrative Review against FY2068/69, 2069/70, 2073/074, 2074/075, 2075/076 and
2076/077 and final order has not been awarded. The Company has appealed to Revenue Tribunal against administrative order
received from IRD for the financial year 2071/072, final order has not been awarded. The company has created contingent
liabilities for all cases of Administrative Review and Revenue Tribunal.

NOTE 2.26: Rent Payable

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease rental agreement has been made on 2064/05/04 between Civil Aviation Authority and hotel for operating the executive
lounge and airport restaurant for initial period of 10 years which can be extended further period of 10 years in the same terms
and conditions. Due to the change in tariff rate of Rent from Rs. 900 per sq. meter per month to Rs. 3,000 per sq. meter per
month, CAAN has demanded additional rent from 11th Year on wards which was not accepted by the Company reason being
that initial agreement cannot be overruled by any later amendment of tariff rules. Therefore, the company has proceeded for
Kathmandu District court against such additional rent demanded letter which was awarded in favour of our the Company. The
CAAN has further appeal in the High Court against decision of Kathmandu Distriict Court, which was awarded in favour of the
CAAN. The Company has further appeal in Supreme Court against the decision of the High Court, the decision has not been
awarded. The company is of the opinion that there would not be significant obligation relating such appeal being considered
at the Court.

In 2064.05.15, TIA and Radisson entered a 10-year rental agreement with an extension option. Radisson's facilities were based
on a 20-year continious business expectation. A dispute over the extension led Radisson to continue occupancy while seeking
legal resolution. The court, in 2074, ordered Radisson to pay rent adjusted for inflation (as per NRB rates) for the period from
2074.09.14. The following additional amount of rent has been booked in the financial statements:

Total Dues Incorporating inflation 15,011,458
Rebate(1* & 2" lockdown) (as per court decision) (6,934,565)
Balance Dues 8,076,893

Oriental Hotel Ltd. has filed a legal case (Case No. 078-CP-0018) seeking rent concessions due to the COVID-19 pandemic
and challenging specific actions taken by the Civil Aviation Authority of Nepal (CAAN), such as forfeiture of bank guarantees,
blacklisting, issuing public notices, and restricting airport access. On 2081.03.26, the court issued an interim order in favor of
Oriental Hotel, temporarily suspending these actions under Section 156 of the Civil Procedure Code, 2074. Further updates will
be provided as the case progresses.

NOTE 2.27: Casino Rad Receivable

Oriental Hotel is involved in a legal dispute (case No. 078-CP-0719) with Mr. Kishor Silwal over unpaid receivables amount of
Casino Rad. Mr. Silawa had given personal guarantee against outstanding dues of Casino Rad. The hotel claims a remaining
outstanding balance with Interest amount of overdue balance against personal guarantee of Mr. Kishore Silwal,. The court
has directed both parties to appoint independent Chartered Accountants (CAs) to review the relevant financial records and
determine the actual amount paid and any balance outstanding. Findings will be submitted to the court. The outcome of these
proceedings may impact the financial statements. The court order has been issued on the 16" day of Shrawan, 2081.
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NOTE 2.28: Staff Motivational Allowance

As per clause no.1.of the Collective bargaining agreement, all employees are entitled to avail 5.5% of total Income of the hotel
as a motivational allowance. During the financial review, it was identified that the 5.5% motivation allowance was erroneously
calculated and paid on the total revenue rather than on the total income (Revenue minus operating expenses) till the end
of December 2023. This miscalculation resulted in an overpayment of Rs. 17,675,299/- to employees. The excess amount
disbursed will be adjusted from 1st January 2024 till the full amount is exhausted.

NOTE 2.29: Interest Expenses

Interest Expenses comprises of:

July 15, 2024 July 16, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) | (Ashad 31, 2080

WCL, Demand & OD Loan 14,304,018 24,147,901

2 Consortium Loan 21,065,568 2,897,926
3 BG and Other Term Loan 8,111,032 30,878,839
Total 43,480,618 57,924,667

NOTE 2.30: Income Tax
(i)  Current Tax:

The Company has a net profit before other comprehensive income and Income Tax provision of NRs. 150,082,231/-(Previous
year NRs. 201,946,069/-) at the end of the financial year 2080/081. Income Tax provision has been created at the rate of
21.25% on Taxable Profit computed complying as per Income Tax Act 2058, which is amounting to NRs.18,380,637/- (Previous
year NRs. NIL).

(i) ~ Tax Deducted at Source:

Withholding Tax has been deducted as per Nepalese Income Tax Act 2058. The interest on outstanding amount of TDS has not
been provided in the books of account.
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ORIENTAL HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 2.30 Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating maker as
defined by NFRS 8, "Operating Segment". Management of the company has consideed the total operation to be segregable
into four operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i) Room Division: Room division includes Room and House Keeping department.
ii) F&B : The Food and Beverage Department incude sale of food, Beverage and related other F&B facilities etc. that is directly
linked to operation of hotel.

iii)  Airport : Airport Lounge and resturant unit provides airport lounge service and F&B resturant service to the travelers at
Tribhuwan International Airport (TIA)

iv) Other hotel business: The other operation of hotel that incude sale of Heanth Club, Spa, Laundry, business center and
other revenue.

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in NRs.)

Total Revenue 425,741,747 410,038,148 279,314,567 101,696,249 1,216,790,711
F&B Consumed - 94,377,775 46,827,371 - 141,205,146
Operating Supplies & Expenses 85,148,349 86,108,011 19,552,020 16,556,011 207,364,392
Employee Benefits Expense 123,465,107 155,814,496 50,276,622 20,713,560 350,269,785
Other Expenses 63,861,262 49,204,578 33,517,748 12,875,600 159,459,188
Total Expenses 272,474,718 385,504,860 150,173,761 50,145,171 858,298,510
Segment Result 153,267,029 24,533,288 129,140,806 51,551,078 358,492,200
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 108,704,128
Finance Cost 99,705,842
Income Tax (Current & deferred) 26,093,286
Profit/(Loss) for the period 123,988,945

* Directly associated and identifable segment cost has been reported on actual basis.

* Cost of depreciation and amortisation , financial cost and Income taxes are considered as part of unallocated expenses
which are not identifiable to any business segment.

* Company's Assets and liabilities are considered as a part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to
any business segment.

NOTE 2.32 Employees Bonus

Staff bonus is provided at 10% of net profit before tax and other comprehensive income. During this financial year
company is in profit therefore, the provision for employee’s bonus has been cerated of NRs. 15,008,223/ (Previous year
NRs.20,194,607/-) is made in the account as required under Bonus Act 2030.

NOTE 2.33 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided NRs. 1,239,889/- (Previous year 1,609,224/-) (1% of Net profit after tax) as
Corporate Social Responsibility as per section 54(1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act, 2073.



NOTE 2.34: Related Party Disclosure:

Related Party Disclosures for the year ended July 15, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) in accordance with NAS 24 issued by the Accounting
Standard Board of Nepal.

List of Related Parties & Relationships, where control exists.

Sr.

No.

Nature of Relationship

Annual Report
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Name of Parties

Key Management Personnel

1 | Holding Company Nil
2 |Subsidiary Company Nil
3 Associate Companies Nil
4

ANIL DAS SHRESTHA
BIDHATA SHRESTHA
BILASHA SHRESTHA
BADRI DHAKAL
SUBRATA BANARJEE
LOK RAJ DHUNGANA
DEEPAK MAN PRADHAN
KIRAN PANT

KEDAR PANDEY
GAYANESH DASH
GANESH BAHADUR THAPA
RAJESH SUBBA

PALLAVI NATH
RABINDRA KUMAR SETH

Relatives of Key Management personnel

BILASHA SHRESTHA

Enterprises where significant Influence exist by Key
Management Personnel

Himalayan Travels & Tours Pvt. Ltd.

Chitwan Paradise Hotel Pvt. Ltd.
Oriental Housing Pvt. Ltd

Details of transaction with the related parties

1

2

3

Holding

Transactions
Company

Purchase of Air Tickets,

Courier charges and transport Nil
services
(Nil)
. Nil
Remuneration .
(Nil)
Land rental for office purpose Nil

(Nil)

Subsidiary
Company

Nil
(Nil)
Nil
(Nil)
Nil

(Nil)

Key
Management
Personnel /
Individuals

Associates

Nil Nil
(Nil) (Nil)
Nil Nil
(Nil) (Nil)
Nil 2,376,142
(Nil)  (2,635,380)

Nil

(Nil)
2,511,637
(2,127,277)

Nil

(Nil)

Enterprises

Relatives of Key | where Significant
Management
Personnel

Influence exist by
Key Management
Personnel

828,515
(737,021)
Nil

(Nil)
1,445,562

(1,449,459)
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Outstanding as on July 15, 2024

Enterprises
where Significant

Key
Holding | Subsidiary Associates Management

Relatives of Key

Management T
Company | Company Personnel / Personnel exist by Key

Individuals Management
Personnel

Transactions

1 Purchase of Air Tickets,
Courier charges and transport

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil)
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2  Rent Payable
(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil)
3 Remuneration Payable Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil (Nil)
(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil)
Note:
(a) Figures in bracket represent previous year amounts.
(b) No amount have been written off/provided for or written back during the year in respect of amount receivable from or

payable to the related parties.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Oriental Hotels Limited

Lok Raj Dhungana Bidhata Shrestha Anil Das Shrestha Subhadra Shrestha e Pe; 0‘;;22’:" of Even Date

Financial Controller Joint Mamaging Director Managing Director Chairman o ssociates

Sunil Lal Shrestha Prakash Tiwari Rabindra Lal Shrestha Mishu Shrestha | CAYagyaRathatta ....
Directors Directors Directors Directors Partner

Chartered Accountants
Date: Bhadra 27, 2081 ( September 12, 2024)

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Significant Accounting Policies p

1) Company Overview

Oriental Hotels Ltd ( OHL or the "Company"),
trading in the name and style of “Radisson Hotel,
Kathmandu”, is incorporated under the Companies
Act 2021 ( successor Companies Act, 2063) as
Private Limited company having registration
number 1465/050/051 dated 2050/10/05 and got
its status as Public Limited on 2056/03/02 vide
its registration number 712. The shares of the
Company are listed and traded on the Nepal Stock
Exchange Limited (NEPSE). The Company has its
registered office at Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal.

The Radisson Hotel, nestled in the heart of
Kathmandu, is the city’s most distinguished luxury
hotel. The hotel is located within 5 kilometres
from Tribhuvan International Airport.

The Company is engaged in providing hospitality
services mainly renting rooms and restaurant
services under 5-star category to its valuable
guests. An ideal destination for discerning
business and leisure traveller. The 5-star luxury
hotel boasts of modern facilities and a resort
like feel with luscious green and magnificent
waterscapes.

The hotel offers an unforgettable experience,
boasting of 260 elegantly designed rooms
and suites along with many facilities, such
as rooftop swimming pool, fitness centre,
renownedtranquillity spa, high speed wireless
internet and five on-site restaurants and bar
options offering a variety of cuisines to cater all
taste buds.

2) Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Nepal Financial
Reporting Framework (NFRS) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board, as per the
provisions of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal Act, 1997. These confirm,
in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the
Accounting Standards Board. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going

b)

d)

concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all
the standards and the related interpretations
which are consistently used.

The Financial Statements were approved
by Board of Director on Bhadra 27, 2081
(September 12, 2024) and authorized for issue.

Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, income and expenses,
are not offset unless required or permitted by
Nepal Accounting Standards.

Going Concern:

The Company has prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 Ashad 2081
(July 15, 2024) on the basis that it will continue
to operate as a going concern. In determining
the basis of preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (July 15,
2024), based on available information, the
management has assessed the prevailing
macroeconomic conditions and its effect on
the company and the appropriateness of the
use of the going concern basis. The Company'’s
business recorded strong improvement in
profitability compared to the previous year on
the back of a fast recovery momentum reaching
pre COVID-19 levels of operations post the
easing of restrictions. The management has
formed judgement that the Companyhave
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future driven
by the continuous operationalisation of
risk mitigation initiatives and monitoring of
business continuity and response plans at each
business unit level along with the financial
strength of the Company.

In determining the above significant
management judgements, estimates
and assumptions, the impact of the
macroeconomic  uncertainties, including

supply chain disruptions, power interruptions
and distribution challenges on account
of theprevailing foreign exchange market
limitations, and the current economic
conditions pandemic have been considered
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e)

f)

g)

as of the reporting date and specific
considerations have been disclosed under the
notes, as relevant.

Presentation and functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented
in Nepalese Rupees, which is the primary
economic environment in which the Company
operates. The Company uses the currency of
the primary economic environment in which
they operate as their functional currency.

Comparative information

The presentation and classification of the
Financial Statements of the previous year
has been amended, where relevant for better
presentation and to be comparable with those
of the current year.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for
following assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value amount:

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities
i. Defined employee benefits

Historical cost is generally fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when
pricing the assetor liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, and
measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in NAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in NAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

h)

3)

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markers for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial
statements in conformity with NFRS requires
management to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the reported balances
of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported
amounts of income and expenses for the
years presented. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Changes in estimates are reflected
in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material,
their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the
financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue
comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages
and allied services relating to hotel operations,
including shop license fee, management and
marketing fee.

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the
service, provided pervasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, tariff/rates is fixed or are
determinable and collectability is reasonably
certain. Revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes,
returns and discounts. Management and
marketing fees including shop license fee are
recognised when earned in accordance with
the terms of the contract.

Revenue from interest is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
rate method.



iv.

Insurance claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the
basis of claims admitted / expected to be
admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Inventories

Stock of food and beverages and stores and
operating supplies are measured at the lower
of cost (computed on a Weighted Average
basis) and net realizable value. Cost includes
the fair value of consideration paid including
duties and taxes (other than those refundable),
inward freight, and other expenditure directly
attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in determining the
cost of purchase. Net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price of inventories less all
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Discarded, unserviceable and defective
inventories like linen, uniform, glassware,
chinaware and service equipment are charged
to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost, less accumulated depreciation
(other than freehold land) and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. All property, plant
and equipment are initially recorded at
cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or
the cost of construction, including duties
and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly
related to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for making them
operational for their intended use and in the
case of qualifying assets, the attributable
borrowing costs. Initial estimate of costs
of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located is also
included if there is an obligation to restore it.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All others repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the
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reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost
of property, plant and equipment that are
not yet ready for their intended use on the
reporting date and materials at site.

On transition to NFRS, the Company has
elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at July 17, 2015 measured as per
the previous local GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment except freehold land, freehold
building and leasehold building.Freehold land,
freehold building and leasehold building have
been measured at fair value as its deemed cost
as on the date of transition.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value
less accumulated depreciation on buildings
and impairment charged subsequent to the
date of the revaluation. The carrying values of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. Any revaluation
surplus is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity in the
asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of
the same asset previously recognised in the
income statement, in which case the increase
is recognised in the income statement. A
revaluation deficit is recognised in the income
statement, exceptto the extentthatitoffsetsan
existing surplus on the same asset recognised
in the asset revaluation reserve. Accumulated
depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon
disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to
the particular asset being sold is transferred to
retained earnings. Where land and buildings
are subsequently revalued, the entire class of
such assets is revalued at fair value on the date
of revaluation. The Company has adopted a
guideline of revaluing assets by a professional
valuer at least once in every three years.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment are
de-recognised upon replacement, disposal
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or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset is included in
the income statement in the year the asset is
de-recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment other than freehold land i.e.
the Company's freehold building, plant
and machinery, vehicles and other assets is
provided on ‘straight line method’ based
on useful life estimated by technical expert
of the management. In respect of leasehold
buildings, depreciation on buildings on
leased properties is based on the tenure
which is the lower of the life of the buildings
or the expected lease period. Improvements
to buildings are depreciated on the basis of
their estimated useful lives.

Longtermleaseholdland (otherthan perpetual
lease) is depreciated over the balance period
of the lease, commencing from the date the
land is put to use for commercial purposes.

The assets useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the Reporting date and the effects
of any changes in estimates are accounted
for on a prospective basis. Depreciation on
addition/deletion to property, plant and
equipment is provided on pro-rata basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

The estimated useful lives of material asset categories and their depreciation rates on straight line

method basis are as follows:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life | Rate of Depreciation

Building on Freehold Land

Building Services on Freehold Land
Building on Leasehold Land
Building Services on Leasehold Land
Plant and Machinery

Furniture and Fixtures

Vehicles and Office Equipment

Investment properties

Investment property is property (land and
building) held either to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both, but not
for sale in the ordinary course of business or
use in the supply of services for administrative
purposes. Upon initial recognition, an
investment property is measured at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Fair values of investment properties are
disclosed in the Notes to the financial
statement. Fair value is determined by an
independent valuation expert.

Vi.

60 1.65
18-20 5-6

28 3.5
18-28 5-6
14-19 53-7.3
14-30 3.4-73
14-19 5.3-7.3

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Assets that suffer impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period. In case of such
reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased so as not to exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined
had there been no impairment loss.



Vii.

viii.

ix.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and net of
impairments, if any. An intangible asset is
recognized if it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the company and
its cost can be measured reliably. Intangible
assets are amortized on straight line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Functional currency and Foreign currency
transactions

The financial statements of the Company are
presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the
Company's functional currency. In preparing
the financial statements of the Company,
transactions in currencies other than the
Company's functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognized at the rates of
exchange at the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when, and
only when, the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition

When financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case financial assets not at fair value, through
profit or loss directly attributable transaction
costs. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets carried at amortised
cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of financial
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asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if
it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of
financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in
any of the above categories is measured
at FVTPL.

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognized only when
the Company has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset.
Where the Company has transferred an
asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognized.
Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognized. Where the Company retains
control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with NFRS 9 “Financial
Instrument”, the Company uses ‘Expected
Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than
those measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through
a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses
(expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument
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that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected
credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial
instrument)

For trade receivables, the Company applies
‘simplified approach’ which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables. The Company
uses historical default rates to determine
impairment loss on the portfolio of trade
receivables. At every reporting date, these
historical default rates are reviewed and
changes in the forward looking estimates are
analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12months
ECL to provide for impairment loss where
there is no significant increase in credit risk.
If there is significant increase in credit risk full
lifetime ECL is used.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when, and
only when, the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or
loss directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities
that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized, and through the
amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from

X)

Xi)

the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognized at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Leases

Accounting Policy Set out below are the new
accounting policies of the company upon
adoption of NFRS 16, which have been applied
from the date of initial application:

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets
when the underlying asset is available for
use. Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life or the lease term. Right-
of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the implementation of NFRS 16 of
the lease, the Company recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease
term. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Company uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the NFRS-
16 commencement date if the interest rate
implicitin the lease is not readily determinable.
After the implementation date, the amount



of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

xii) Employee benefits

i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in
the statement of financial position.

ii) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan:

The Company pays social security
contributions to publicly administered
social security funds as per the local
regulations. The Company has no further
payment obligations once contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contribution are recognized
as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Defined benefit plan:

For defined benefit plan in the form of
gratuity the Company pays social security
contributions to publicly administered
social security funds as per the local
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regulations. The Company has no further
payment obligations once contributions
have been paid. The retirement benefit
obligation recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation

iii) Long term employee benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves
are not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render
the related service. Therefore, these are
measured at the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
end of the year using the projected unit
credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the
year that have terms approximating to the
terms of assumptions are recognized in
profit or loss.

xiii) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

xiv) Income taxes

Income tax expenses represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax expenses are accounted in the
same period to which the revenue and
expenses relate. Provision for current income
tax is made for the tax liability payable
on taxable income after considering tax
allowances, deductions and exemptions
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XV)

determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Prevailing General corporate tax rate of
Nepal is 25%. The Company is entitled to
a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058.
Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the
company for current fiscal year is 21.25%.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax is
recognized using the statement of financial
position and its tax base. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount in financial
statements, except when the deferred income
tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss
at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company
has a binding present obligation. This may
be either legal because it derives from a
contract, legislation or other operation of law,
or constructive because the Company created
valid expectations on the part of third parties
by accepting certain responsibilities. To record
such an obligation, it must be probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and reliable estimate can

be made for the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognized as a provision
and the indicated time range of outflow of
economic benefits are the best estimate
(most probable outcome) of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,
non-current provisions are discounted if the
impact is material.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only
when there is possible obligation arising from
the past events due to occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation
cannot be measured in terms of future outflow
of resources or where a reliable estimate of
the obligation cannot be made. Obligations
are assessed on an on-going basis and only
those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

Contingent asset

Contingent assets where it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the
Company are not recognized but disclosed in
the financial statements.

xvi) International license agreement

The company has entered into an International
licenses agreement with Radisson Hotels
international Inc. and accordingly following
fees are payable to them:

® Royalty

® Marketing and advertising

e Reservation

Royalty, marketing and advertising fees are
payable on fixed percentage of gross room
sales as provided in the agreement and the
reservation fees is payable on the basis of
invoice received from the Radisson Hotels
International Inc.

xvii) Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit or loss after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year including
potential equity shares on compulsory



convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the profit/loss
after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share.

xviii) Operating segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistentwith the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM)
as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s income and expenses including
interest are considered as part of un-
allocable income and expenses which are
not identifiable to any business segment.
Company'’s asset and liabilities are considered
as part of un-allocable assets and liabilities
which are not identifiable to any business.

xix) Prior Period

Errors of material amount relating to prior
period(s) are disclosed by a note with nature
of prior period errors, amount of correction
of each such prior period presented
retrospectively, to the extent practicable along
with change in basic and diluted earnings
per share. However, where retrospective
restatement is not practicable for a particular
period then the circumstances that lead to the
existence of that condition and the description
of how and where the error is corrected are
disclosed in notes on accounts.

xx) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities
comprise loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the company’s
operations. The company’s principal financial
assets comprise trade and other receivables,
and cash and short-term deposits that arrive
directly from its operations.

The company is exposed to market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

Commodity price risk

The company is affected by the volatility of
certain commodities. Its operating activities
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require the ongoing purchase of inventory
and therefore require a continuous supply of
the same.

The Company manages this risk by purchasing
inventory from the supplier identified by the
management and the company has long term
relation with the supplier.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily for trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with
banks and financial institutions.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the
Company’'s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of the customer
is assessed and individual credit limits are
defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding  customer receivables are
regularly monitored.

Cash Deposits

Risks from balances with banks are managed
by maintaining the balances with highly
reputed commercial banks only.

Liquidity Risk
The Company monitors its risk to a shortage

of funds on a regular basis through cash
forecast.

xxi) Capital management

For the purposes of the company’'s capital
management, capital includes paid up
capital, security premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders
of the company. The primary objective
of the company’s capital management is
to maximize the shareholder's value. The
company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustment in the light of changes in
economic condition and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
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IFATE FEATAOT MU & G faxfier faawomeme
EIZUHT B | FHFIICT TR SEAT-aRUT TehT STETHT T
FrfehT THcaRT TFeived e ST qT aTge O
FEAT-ALOT T qUA Wi TR TTEs | HP=TeT I&dT Siead
T AT EEAT=0T TR Teheh! ATTATHT IEAT FrIeiieATs
forefer foraurene gerguent @9 | faxfior grafaenr fa=or
FFT B U] STTTATHT &l ToeiiEr TreiaT o ihT
FEIT UehT JTHTHRT S |
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fafia avafaet g A (Impairment)

uTer faefer ufdaemm R (“faxfir e s1gem
FIOAIT TR AR ATAHATE Sgfad  Godieh
TTITCUTeRT SATEIAT FearteheT THUeRT foriiar Traf aTesh 7%
qrafeeh! HedTehd T4 GrTiad shele AadmT (Expected
credit loss) TGfd STIATSTHT & |

qrfad el T Hid § W= detshT HUee feeam
W@:

yidaeent fafa afger ¢ aferent fa<dia SiemET
&7 T anTferd oY

a1

ar fofior ofiemenr oy otafy wilmr g o
AT @ FEIaET g T aRITiad $ele
BIEICHE

U §J Skl hHRT SHRAT FFOHIT EXCAIRd 3T
STOTUHT B | T JUTIHT FEoh! STTCAHT I U §ga-
ThHe! FRQUt SFaRIET g we AeErers fearer iy
B | forTaeTe Sf@ueT STaETETs &l W §gu- TohHeh!
BT FreamHfenT g freftr Tiusr | &t gidaeT aar
TGl feRTAHT UST STEaEATRI TUEweh THUHT & T Ufs
g ST FraarTeRT JiEt Tt faversoT MUk @ |

fa<ha e
Teftve afga™

FIOT B foxfier STSTRERT HURET Ter wuafs AT
fariier SfSTRaTs shrdiiehr fareter qTfercarenl o HwTesT
TR & | HEOHT STl FIHT THEST TEf ek
e foxfr atfacaes g7 afieRomr e T
fafema éw |

farier aTfarcaeTTs et wee quTasT et faqens aqfera
HEAHT JET3-S aX Yf=Id HodHT J@TSH Tk ST
T STt RN Tl ARl ARTdhT STEMAT
ATHT ST Ao TaaomT d@rs THushT & | 3fed geomT
ETsuaT foxfir arfacaehl wRERERT ATfitd 1T &r
AFITRT FTAT AT ST T TTaOTHT THTAST TRUshT
T
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faetia et aftowt weaiaa

faiter faqeromr afear ges amEer TRuer faxdie
aTTIed AT AT AIGEHT ETdTeR! ATeAHaTe Ty e JoamT
oo TTNUGRT T8 9 Tafeld saTsTateh! STTURAT Jod
BeTg farciier TorawomT SEmsueht & | JTacaeh! Jr-amT
WUhT AT BT T G SI2I3aT HUhT JuEeeTs A16T &
e TereruTT SETETehT B |

Ticaarg faefia fqawutEae @< (De-recognition)

foxfrer arfarcaent @ g wamT, ufe @nst it
T guTe ET et faxfier arfacaers faeier faatoreme
BIE | H QM TRl ITIcashl AT STTHT T
T aTacaehl T4 e WHT QT aTicaelt gerg 73t
aTtacaeTs AT fagTeRT © T QTEHT T ST Hih
THACATS FTHT T ST Tt 7T MU |

o) YsrRT ST (Equity Instruments)

F TEITR gEfaEe d g Temals afent
afeT AT Hes USfier SieTRe &wET faguenT
T | FEIHSGRT STRY TTHUshT GefienT Sfeiieeats ST 7T
AR @ fedTa 9218 aishl Ut Ul Sifd hueTs
YSTIohT &1 SETTHT S |

d) T&aT (Lease)

@ AT NFRS 16 AuTuls srd-lenl 3T o@m
Hifaes qer oo st &, I urfrye fafasfa amp
’TF{@%@‘:

Right-of-use assets

It AU TEITA ITANTRT ATHT 3qeieq & 9 4T
qfdaTg Right-of-use assets 3T E9HT gfg= T4
HFS | Right-of-use assets SNTAHT HIUA T,
FT Ui Eied YouRTE T I AaErT JeEs T 9gT
afcag®el Ft UM G WIOART AT FHTATSH
RS | Right-of-use assets @I TRTAHT HI=IT
YTeq SIST T Fcaa®eh! ThH, TR Teel dANTaes,
T g fafd a1 Afa 9gr yhrieE aTed TTRUshT
THAEE GUTAST S | SToHH ool IeT Taferehr
STCIHT AT FFTeh! EaTTHCE ST T eiTterd 9T
ffy=a &, Right-of-use assets STTHTHA W
SfiaT o7 Ugr Tatuehl SEMT HUT-AagT SATERAT

HIETE TS |

Lease Liability

NFRS 16 STFHR FHEAeT TSI STSTIHT BT Teh
THAETS SqH HedT HIGRT TgT aTfered afeem
TS | IET YehHIeRT IHT Hodl TUMT TaT, HFd-iel
NFRS-16 ureey fafaar gfgefier Sem € wam w6,
gt ggmT fafed saTer &t Afeer frufor 1 |fshed |
st ot ufs, st arfaca s & saTeter gig
yidfetrard T T AR TSTEURT B T ST Y e%sh!
AN SRTSTR! B | AfG TgHT TIETSH, TeT SataHT
aitE, JEqa v qer yehHieET aREds o
Fatied qratd TRIGeh! HeATe =T IREd 58 o
Tl aTecag®ehl ThH J: AT TS |

BIET AATLHT TZTEE

Frofier yre Tafaefa ¢ afear ar dnrmr FHenr
UST TR UHT USTEEHT BT TTIhT TST HI=IdT
T AT W T | B ATt UgEER! st
YHIIEE Tl STATIHT EeT-ATs STTURET el
YT THTEH TRUHT 3 |

EREIUSIERY
&) BT FA(TRT TAAZR

qas qur SAm T R oTRiew gfewm wEa
FUERICT §aT Y& TRehT 2R AiedT s R ua
TS W= AT & | J&dT aTacaee faeier
foatur TR el S R e Sid
fag ot 2 & @ feama T dwTeRT THUHT
@ | Taxita faawomr @t arfaaars g arfaa
AT HHART gaem adsw wE i
@R 3 |

@) AT Graen

faftaa dwem gfaem (Defined Contribution
Plan)

T ST STTHR FHFIieT ST HHTATRT
Haghy H SR TRRgRT  geriad
TN, THTST HeTT HISHT HTHTISTeh FHeaTIT
TS STFAT T4 TRehT & | HISHT Uk U<k hH
ST TRUTS I FFIErT hFITehT e qTiaed
SehT T | ShITHT TTNURT ARTEHATS et FIHT
Tarcfier feramomaT TwTareT THUERT & T BT T
Tafq & @< SETSTRT & | THT ST BT TR




AMEHATS Thal G T ar Wia=mT T
THIHTT HHT SIS ST WTHT Frafeeh! FET
TETEHT B |

fAfr=a gfaen S0 (Defined Benefit Plan)

39aTeh! & fag glaumehr gehem ufd e
TATTq HElT USRSk qedeeR
rerreAT fafyer itushr & | ST U Uew W
STHT TRUTES I FFTeHT SRFITeRT B aTieTea
SehT @ | el ST o7 e HieT ST ferehT
BT a7 T TTaRoTT SETE= | ST Uig
feaque wn forfier feraomaT S@me=s T A Ha

TIEehT FAHT AT Hid &l T TS |

M) FHARS dEEa  gEAGT  (Long term
Employee Benefit)
FHANCT T aleh! TaT aTddeh! ThH A=l

qar fewdfs ¢ dfer P TwaTs gied 9=t
HIHTERT & | CTHHRT HITSHT TJu awTfead
YIS Farfad uTed afth Shele UgdignT
Tewma TR SETSTEHT | AT AT F1edT faawomT
376 Tewme T 7 &€ O feare et & @Rt
T JHATs el W aTtacaehl IAHE ol
TepTieTusT & |

g) U1 AW (Borrowing Cost)

0T fetaT ARl @eiels S qvatd @dig T, fmfor
T ST FRd i TS 30T feTguent &t Gt arafehl arTaaT
THTAST MU & | T qrfaee FA0T T4 ar fasht T
B T THT A TGS | FHF UK T qeehTieTh TIHT
F T TaT HTS HUhT TSNS Ui IhLoT T 0T
TR THT TSR] S | 7% Tl YT FUT STIchT
Tdee 7 AR Trafed S aret STatet AT ar
T TIaoTT @I & |

@) ATARI{ET

ST @eieh! T9HT SETSTERT TohH dcehTel faga ar
T TR TR A |

AT ATTHT
I AT AT T @ WUH S Al araHr

(e STTARIATS D] ST AT J@TZTRT
T | vafcd AR FHHT AR L Fees, L
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HEEAT T T I g2 aud foan W y=tad
IR & ITHR HEATT I fead m &
TTIAhT STioIcaehl ST MU B |

JUTART TfAd HHT HURE T L 4% & |
FHFIICT TR UT 0% THITSTH ATHTT Fhleh! AT
2Uu% B U T | TEIER, AT ATk TahT ATHT
FHOHIATS AT T &L R.RU% ol B |

T Y (Deferred Tax)

AT JocliEad A T Tiocashl siemT SRaueht
ST HIhAlly  WF ikl TIHT  W@T3UhT
T | T AR THAATS faxiid faeor T &
QI IR ATHAT Teumar M | grafa T giaeaent
STrRAT fague & T faedter faaromT Seora st
Tafeeeh! ToamT dehTet SREURT SHTeh! HATERAT T
SfehT TR TedTer TRuehT & | fague STt T are
STITRT T T AT I FFETET e ST TO 378
FRITRH! SHAT TG THaHRT ! Teara TRush!
ol

as Torfomsr FEmT TEurl wads S T
TieTcaTenT TUHT ETSTRT & | T T gTidcashl FIHT
SETEUSHT T T Tfaded qai et qaaeis
TR & T T & fad oo STeT geer agd
STETAT TS BT B |

HEEAT, AT ST AT FEATIA aeat

TAEATER
T FHFTehT ATaT aTided SR STUHT AFATs
SEEATHT NGSTHT & | AT SFEET TEpIAT o 37 U
AT RIS TTGT ST TIHT = TR, AT HETHeT
F aTiacT fauRl HRORT JHT UET S 9T
M TRET & §T S | I Tonfament arfae
TedTamT S@TSeRT ATRT &T qTferce THATE T hHT
fequd T wrmeRr arfacasr @ fafved sgam ™
Hfsh STSERIT Teoh! §IUGS | SATLATRT FIHT TRGTRT
Y T T Mgl Aty ufaaaeht famT ada=
T STkl TR T =TE Gelehl STTHH AT
21 | TE STgEH Tt v AT St Shifem et
SrfafeeradTeehT foaem TR & | it =T sHaeehT
g fadel ot weeyul g feuwmr faers
discount T FARH HeIHT SETETH S |
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FEATI TR

FFTTehT qUT F1E=I0T 9aT SRR T AT TohveaT
SET HeAT §J AT gl fandeRl el HRU
F AT GSHT GO SREUAT FHATS FrTad
aTfecarshl AT TAsUent & | a9 forfawerT arfacaeht
R ot T TRURT § T e v anfeie
AT IRITEHT YUHT STforeaars aTs facfer faaromr
HUTCRT TRUH 3 |

AT |t

qult 1= wrufdeR! &uAT wfewmT Ut g7 g
aTTffer TS fewmamT gt TRtwenT & oX fardtr
TeraromT Gamr 1 i 3 |

q) ARG AL GERAT

FIOfteT AT BIeed §etHT $hTT ST
HERIAT T B, §1 a9 3t HFIHIes 1 A I[eeh
fed g :

— I

o S C I CE R DIRCRIEE

- T

Arfl IeoitEgd Teel T a9k oFawTod quT famimo=
HOIAET I JHINTH el hieT fashienl dlfenushr
giaeraent saTer fajue 1 RSoRe audwr e
TSI Blecd 3 3-ohahl TaeT farsteh sifoT Tt
TRUHT B |

¥) 9fd AU ARIHT (Earning per share)

TR SehT ST=camT, STHT AT BT AT qT
HTIROT SRRAT INUTA g OISR HEATel hTateaehT
AT RIS T TR Ui SRR SATERYA STRIehT fearar
TTITERT &7 | WfeT 19 SATLTCA 371 TehTest SR TRt
ITEd TN ETEROT IR S&ATel g Tl STEET
AN, ST T 3% T Hheld SEeges Uld IR 3
FepTferTent & |

g) ™ HA@ 987 (Operating segment)

Jurer foxfiTr gidqaed A ¢ ‘& e T8 o
AT W STIER Yg@ d=e fofaerarems fagushr
TR UldaaRiT STgeRel g1 T il el TeTehl
Tedma SEmRTH B |

SATST A ShFIHTeRT ST T &9 e I SFqETieh
YT Q@A Ao A AT @ g1 WA i
T | IR Gt qT e 9 RFHTeRT B ai
T T&THT e Ui T&HT SEISH e Srtd T
i g Wi 9Tl B |

@) fecie srafa @waelt (prior period)

Tafauehenr STafushl Tra=omT AT ThHHAT Todl &
TR ITSUHT AT Miedeh! Ushid T HIMEA THTHT T
GATS AT TAT G& Ui AT SThRT fearawor feequfiar
l‘gﬁl'l's’@ﬁ T | qUMT retrospective restatement
Faeiieh  avuAT facier  foewomehr  feoqufiar  @rr
TRl Tasur W T Tieq wed qur g7 fafasha
HIME MU & 9=~ GASUHT |

7) facia Sifaw soaeamw araredt Ige aan Aifage

FruTeh! G fadta qTferca W-ehT T qT A9t T
T st TR g1 | 3t qTforcaehl g 389 HFuHTeh
HE deTerhl ATt fadfer o Suctsy TSy @ |
Froeh! e faeir qrafd el &1 SreeTe ured
EIU TohHEE, TS T BNl it feres g |

FIOHT TR ST, IS SNGH T AR SITEHehT
Tl |THAT TR |

TEIHTS FFaT SRaH (Commodity Price Risk)

TEJETh! HoIHT 373 SARAGTT HFEI-IeTs TTiad
4D | IR i GETEhR AT T T
HHTEE ATl Ues T e Tlig uft THues |
FFITehT AT SIS TReRT SR TeTE HTH
T e STYfehaTeT SATHI THITERT IR ST=TTd
FRIGR T i fa Feofer a1 Sifew saeemT
TS |

Hale graeel NEA (Credit Risk)

F farefier STIST AT UTEhehT TehT ARBIAT ST T
TETT T TTaT HFIHITS g7 TS AT Hete
araeft SITEmeEe 1 | FEITeT ST ST HeTereh!
SNl STGETOTHT T8 fohfement STfEHehT T

TS |

M

Bl 0 [Evilifies  rEeeE C LS e sl |




m@ﬁw (Trade Receivabes)

qTEhells 3UCTeY TISTHI JURT JEE Iq~T g
Shifem sraier STHAT Hifq, wrifaef qur fe=or
TGHIEIE ST T | Bloh UTeshel s Tag SR
HaTRT &€ oA T M= TR 3 | JTeehere
Ted g SifehT ThA AT ETHT STFTHA TTRUHT & |

e & (Cash Deposit)

Joprr TlEuenT T grafl sifen s ™
3= UIAST qUHT ST SHET A HRER T/
ST HTEI U D |

AYaT geaeefl JIRaw (Liquidity Risk)
TE vaTEsh! TG FOHT qUTgAE T RINehT

FHIeTE g STGHehT HFICT STFTHT T T S |

e

" ‘w'uﬂ
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q) ‘Fﬁ Y4 (Capital Management)

FEOA IS SATEATTAH FaHAT YT Tl
TeRT dSft, TR fufam T sereieeas fagud fafu=r
SHISHT T oI ThHEe TS | FHFIIeh! ST A ToehT
T 3LIT AR U T o A qeIaTs
stfgehaw gSg 4 & | faxflw Sawem wret
FIAT ST T ATRfH STTCATHT STTHT qREdhRT
STTYRAT FIOAT ST HEAMT IiEdT 16 | a9
qreET FEHTE St §EET ggEq e ITET
giEdT ™, IREATEeATs (a4 AT e T
T T, EERdTs T e fbdt 1 a7 T3t e
ST T i faT de9es |
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aifRevea diecy ferferes
TfTaTe, HreHTe!
TaETH Y FRITaet GRS AT e Tgel
I'CRZCE]
Fd [0 () K [ £ | uRaifda ieiEro JieiErel alcf Uol BIROT
YeFel T T6T € () THT & (F) FOfRl @ I A9 T
FEHIR! GeoTFEEe TAuh! Sotee Tkl Toawr | el SR @i oy | oo ratermr gat o fafeew o
el @ite T ufecr urerfHerdr wEW @ehr difeh | Tt sxeer Feafed T ﬁwﬁaﬁwhﬁm@wﬁf.m
HETTh SR g9 | ¥ ¢ fudos FRET g | GRE T o Wl g3 9 @i |t
U IR §19 | FEAT=UT T ST T 3Uh T |
e TRT I € (@) QR g | T .
U R SRR fospt el s s
ohT T IR @i TR T AmeR TRaT
FOOT U, 043 T AT e 31T F{ A, T
HEATATS ST a7 T TR Tzt 7 U5 |
YT T & () GRS & | FOOAIRT IR @G qUT ST
(3) FrofiehT STRY YSfienT wafreashT STguTd Tl daS  BIRURI  WEETD
PR G939 | AT AT T 3UTh THUEhT |
2. OYE (%) HEATIheesh! o Tfawrd
2. O (W) TEETERUTERT 30 Hiaerd
IBREICI
SICTD) a2l URarfda i ieiEret aref Uot BROT
i W 3 (B) ot w13 (B) FOAT U, R0%3 HT THT
23 () T HFIHIRT © SHT FoaTeish AT §IS | 2 (3) A 3 <% ITTET THATSTHT |
HoaTcAheteh! T aei JuIted gie |
. Tt vafera sraet AeRr stfumT
2. THE () a1 HeATIeh YReae fatfad ... x
T FFTehT HTRT GTERT TS |
2. TE () GeaTIRoT SRReHTgEaTe fatfad ...2
3. T TTTTE «eveeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeenens p | FoTCTohEEC] 3% HEASE ST
AT AT W S B | B O U et i St
HodITeTeh TiHfdehT STETeT g | g5 |
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ORIENTAL
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PROXY FORM B

The Board of Directors

Oriental Hotels Limited
Lazimpat, Kathmandu .

Re. : Proxy Nomination

Dear Sir/Madam,

Due to my/our inability to attend 27™ annual general meeting of Oriental Hotels Limited scheduled to

be held on 2081/06/20 Sunday, | hereby nominate Mr./Mrs , residence of

District, Municipality/VDC, ward no. as my/our

representative.

Applicant's

Signature

Name

Address

DMAT No.

Share ID No. :

No. of Shares:

Date

Email

Note : This proxy form shall be registered at the registered office at least 48 hours before the meeting
commencement time.

E &

& Oriental Hotels Limited =

Shareholders Name : Email :

Share ID No. : No. of Shares:

Admission Card

Admission card issued to attend 27t annual general meeting of Oriental Hotels Limited, Lazimpat,

Kathmandu, scheduled to be held on 2081/06/20.

oA

Shareholders’ Signature Compan); Secretary

E i
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HOTEL KATHMANDU

Radisson Hotel Kathmandu

P.0.Box: 2269, Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel: 4411818 |Fax 4411720

Email: radisson@radkat.com.np | www.radisson.com/kathmandune



